
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Children, Young 
People and 
Learning Policy 
Overview 
Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
John Hensley (Chairman) 

Brian Crowe (Vice-Chairman) 

Nick Denys 

Jem Duducu 

Tony Eginton 

Duncan Flynn 

Peter Money 

Jane Palmer 

Jan Sweeting (Labour Lead) 

 

Other Voting Representative 
Anthony Little, Roman Catholic Diocesan. 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 15 APRIL 
2015 
 

 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS 3 & 
3A - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE, 
MIDDLESEX UB8 1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in Braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  

  

Published: Tuesday, 7 April 2015 

 Contact:  Jon Pitt 
Tel: 01895 277655 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: jpitt@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=323&Year=2015 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use in 
the various meeting rooms. Please contact us for 
further information.  
 
Reporting and filming of meetings 
 
Residents and the media are welcomed to report the proceedings of the public parts of this 
meeting. Any individual or organisation wishing to film proceedings will be permitted, 
subject to 48 hours advance notice and compliance with the Council’s protocol on such 
matters. The Officer Contact shown on the front of this agenda should be contacted first for 
further information. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 

 



 

 

 

Terms of Reference 
 
A central role of a Policy Overview Committees is to undertake in-depth policy reviews on 
specific issues. Reviews provide the opportunity to hear from members of the public and 
expert witnesses, including people from a wide range of external organisations. Reviews 
usually make recommendations to the Cabinet on how the Council could improve its work. 
They therefore perform an important role in opening up the policy-making process to a 
wider audience, including people who would not normally have the opportunity to 
participate. 
  
This Committee undertakes the policy overview role in relation to the following matters: 
  

• Education Services and statutory education authority functions 

• School performance and attainment 

• School Transport 

• Relationships with Local Academies / Free Schools 

• Pre-School & Early Years Services 

• Youth Services & Careers Services 

• Juvenile justice & probation services 

• Adult Learning 

• Education and learning partnerships 

• Music & The Arts 

• Social care services for children, young persons and children with special needs 

• Adoption and Fostering 

• Family Services 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before the meeting  
 

3 Matters notified in advance or urgent  
 

4 To confirm that items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in 
public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

 
 

5 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 18 March 
2015 

1 - 8 
 

6 Update on the Children and Young People's Services Improvement 
Plan 

9 - 66 
 

7 Quarterly Child Social Care Audit Update 2014 - 2015 67 - 72 
 

8 Review of Leaving Care Grant 73 - 74 
 

9 Quarterly School Place Planning Update 75 - 78 
 

10 Update on the Implementation of Recommendations from past 
reviews of the Committee 

79 - 92 
 

11 Potential Review Topics or Ideas for First Major Review of 2015/16 93 - 96 
 

12 Forward Plan 97 - 102 
 

13 Work Programme 2014/15 103 - 106 
 

 



Minutes 

 

 

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING 
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
18 March 2015 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 6 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 
 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors John Hensley (Chairman), Brian Crowe (Vice-Chairman), Nick Denys, 
Jem Duducu, Duncan Flynn, Peter Money, John Morse, Jane Palmer, Jan Sweeting 
(Labour Lead) and Mr Tony Little.  
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Steve Buckingham (Performance and Intelligence Manager), Vince Clark (Interim 
Assistant Director Children in Care, Permanency & Children's Resources), Nikki 
Cruickshank (Interim Assistant Director of Safeguarding and Quality Assurance), Sarah 
Hydrie (Assistant Internal Audit Manager), Dan Kennedy (Head of Business 
Performance, Policy and Standards), Nasima Patel (Interim Assistant Director - Child 
Protection), Jon Pitt (Democratic Services Officer) and Tony Zaman (Director Adult 
Social Services / Director Children & Young People Services (Interim)).  
 

63. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllr. Tony Eginton with Cllr. John Morse 
substituting. 
 

64. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THE MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2) 
 

 No Declarations of Interest were made. 
 

65. MATTERS NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 No matters had been notified in advance or as urgent. 
 

66. TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 It was confirmed that items marked Part 1 would be heard in public and that those 
marked Part 2 would be heard in private. 
 

67. TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY 18 
FEBRUARY 2015  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Resolved: That: 
 

1. The minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2015 be agreed as a 
correct record. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



  

68. PROGRESS REPORT ON ACTION PLAN IN RESPONSE TO OFSTED INSPECTION 
OF SERVICES TO CHILDREN IN NEED OF HELP AND PROTECTION, CHILDREN 
LOOKED AFTER AND CARE LEAVERS ("OFSTED ACTION PLAN")               
(Agenda Item 6) 
 

 Officers introduced a progress report on improvement activities that had occurred in the 
Children and Young People's Service as a result of the Ofsted inspection in December 
2013. 
 
In June 2014, Ofsted had endorsed Hillingdon's "Ofsted Action Plan". This had been 
developed to address 11 areas of improvement that had been identified following the 
previous "requires improvement" judgement given to the Service. The Action Plan 
contained 41 specific actions, 30 of which had been completed. It was noted that a 
number of residual actions had been moved into the Child Services Improvement Plan. 
There had been significant changes that had affected the service. 
 
Progress had been made in relation to implementation of the Public Law Outline (PLO). 
The aim was to ensure that children achieved a final care order and permanency plan 
within 26 weeks. The current average for completed care cases was 34 weeks, down 
from 57 weeks in 2013/14. 
 
Triage arrangements had been made more robust and services now had a more 
effective front door entry system. The number of Children in Need cases without a care 
plan for six weeks or longer had fallen to 250 and it was anticipated that this would 
soon fall to zero. From April 2015, the average care case in Hillingdon was projected to 
finish within 25 weeks, down from 34 weeks. 
 
The Chairman advised that Her Honour, Judge Judith Rowe QC, the Designated 
Family Judge for West London had recognised the improvements made to date. 
 
A Member of the Committee requested that it be noted that the Ofsted Action Plan had 
previously been presented to the Committee in October 2014, rather than in September 
2014 as set out in officer's report. The Member also felt that the real test of the work 
undertaken would be the sign off of the Improvement Plan by Ofsted. It was questioned 
whether a number of the actions set out in Action Plan had been achieved. Officers 
confirmed that they had been.  
 
Officers advised that meetings would be held with services to consider the Plan in 
detail and that the Plan aimed to take the Service forward, rather than dwelling on the 
situation as it had been in 2013. The Children and Young People’s Service could not 
yet be considered to be good, but it was on a continuous improvement journey. In 
response to a Member question, it was confirmed that the percentage of cases 
consistently meeting ‘good’ standards currently stood at 35%. 
 
The Committee asked what progress had been made in relation to recruitment of 
permanent staff and it was suggested that the number of agency staff currently 
employed was not sustainable. Officers acknowledged that the Service had faced a 
very challenging situation in summer 2014 and that it had been acknowledged that 
serious intervention would be required.  
 
The Council was continuing to make use of an external company, Skylakes Social 
Work, to assist with social work delivery. The situation in relation to turnover of agency 
staff had improved, with staff now staying an average of 37 weeks. This illustrated the 
increasing stability of the Service. The ratio of frontline staff to managers was 1:5, 

Page 2



  

which would ensure adequate supervision. Pay within social services at Hillingdon was 
within the top quartile of all local authorities and a number of channels were being used 
to recruit staff. In response to a Member question, officers advised that the managed 
element of the service had given frontline staff capacity to get on with their jobs. 
 
It was confirmed that a Sustainability Plan was being prepared and was due to be 
presented to the Leader of the Council in the week following the Committee meeting. A 
significant volume of improvement work had been undertaken since August / 
September 2014 and it had always been anticipated that improvements would be 
realised gradually. It was emphasised that the references to ‘good’ in the officer report 
referred to the progress that had been made and did not represent an overall 
judgement on the service. 
 
A Committee Member stated that there was significant evidence of service 
improvement. They were pleased that the figure for case file audits completed by 
managers had reached 100% and that there had been good engagement with senior 
managers. This was helping to create stability in the service and an improvement in 
staff morale. The Member felt that the Ofsted would find a very different service if they 
were to visit at the current point in time and thanked officers for their work, particularly 
in relation to Triage arrangements, which had helped to clear the backlog of work.     
 
Clarification was sought regarding what was meant by the term ‘signs of safety’ in the 
officer’s report. It was clarified that this was a national framework designed to help 
practitioners with risk assessment and safety planning in child protection cases. All 
child protection conferences now used this model. 
 
Committee Members suggested that although there was evidence of improvement, the 
information provided in the Action Plan could have been provided in a clearer and more 
accessible format. Officers advised that a sheet of supplementary evidence presented 
at the Committee meeting provided up to date statistical information covering February 
2015. It was acknowledged that some milestones had not been achieved, but that 
these had now been added to the Service Improvement Plan to help ensure that they 
would be realised. 
 
The Committee questioned what factors helped to make a good Council service. It was 
suggested that these included having time and space to think, robust procedures being 
in place and staff being properly supported. There had been a focus on reducing 
caseloads, which had been the biggest improvement realised. This was allowing staff 
to get on with the work that they had been trained to do and was enabling them to work 
in a more proactive way.  
 
Independent Practice Advisors were now available to coach social workers and work 
was being undertaken with Human Resources on a Workforce Development Plan. 
Training was provided in both classroom and on-site environments. Hillingdon was on 
an improvement journey, but it was likely to be a couple of years before services 
provided to children in need, children looked after and care leavers would be very 
good. The Chairman summarised that social workers required support from the 
workplace in order to be able to share concerns. There needed to be an investment in 
people and there was a belief that the Council was starting to achieve this. 
 
Another Committee Member reflected that it was great to see signs of improvement. 
They questioned what steps were being taken to ensure that staff who were performing 
well were able to mentor other staff and what performance management measures 
were being taken for staff performing below required standards. Officers advised that 

Page 3



  

staff performance issues would be analysed as caseloads continued to fall. New staff 
received a three day induction and delivery of the Action Plan would help to ensure that 
improvements were made. In the event that staff consistently had inadequate cases, 
this would be identified for managers to take appropriate action. Managers had also 
been encouraged to raise any issues identified with senior managers. 
 
Members asked why no up-to-date figures had been provided in relation to measure 
3C of the Action Plan, "all cases, closed management sign off.' A baseline figure of 
18% for assessments that met 'good' standards had been set in May 2014. By 
September 2014, this figure had reached 90% and it was anticipated that it would be 
100% from March 2015. However, there was no up-to-date figure available because 
the baseline had changed and it was noted that the quality of assessment audit was an 
outstanding action. It was confirmed that the Action Plan would need to be recalibrated 
and that Internal Audit would be scrutinising the plan and the response to Ofsted. 
 
Some Members reiterated that there were gaps in the data provided and that this 
raised further questions. The progress made in relation to the improvements since 
Summer 2014 was recognised and the Chairman thanked officers for their work and 
openness in answering questions at the meeting. 
 
Officers confirmed that a completed Children's Social Care Improvement Plan would be 
brought to the April 2015 meeting of the Committee. 
 
Resolved: That: 
 

1. A completed Children's Social Care Improvement Plan be brought to the 
April 2015 meeting of the Committee 

2. Cllr. Sweeting would provide a list of follow up questions in relation to the 
report to Democratic Services. 

3. The report be noted. 
 

69. STANDARDS AND QUALITY IN EDUCATION IN HILLINGDON 2013/2014      
(Agenda Item 7) 
 

 Officers introduced a report on Standards and Quality in Education in Hillingdon. This 
annually produced report had been presented to Cabinet in January and was being 
presented to the Committee in order to provide an opportunity for Members to question 
officers and to seek clarification on the information contained therein. 
 
The report showed that overall results and attainment had improved in Hillingdon and 
were continuing to rise across the five key stages. Results were particularly strong at 
key stages 1, 2 and 4. It was noted that there had been a number of changes in the 
national assessment frameworks. This had meant that reliable comparison with 
previous years had not always been possible. 2013/14 was the first time that results 
could be compared accurately with previous years. There had been a number of 
changes in the measures used at GCSE / Key Stage 4 level. 
 
Within Hillingdon, 13 primary schools and five secondary schools had been identified 
by Ofsted as requiring improvement. One of the five had since improved and was 
therefore no longer included in the category. It was noted that Ofsted would challenge 
the leadership and governance of schools that were under performing. The Council 
issued warning notices and recommended intervention action for community schools 
where there was a need to improve standards, although warning notices were usually 
only issued as a last resort.  

Page 4



  

 
The majority of schools were supportive of Council efforts to improve standards. The 
Council also adopted a brokering role to enable schools that needed to improve to be 
supported by better performing schools. This support could be provided for a fixed 
period of time and could also cover a particular subject or range of subjects. A Member 
questioned how many of the schools that required improvement were under control of 
the Local Authority. Officers advised that at primary level, 10 out of the 13 that required 
improvement were maintained, while at secondary level, only one of the four were 
maintained by the Authority.   
 
Individual tuition support had been made available to Looked After Children in year 6 
and year 11. It was noted separately that daily updates on school attendance were 
available to the Council and that for the 2014/15, there was a focus on improving 
literacy. 
 
In response to a Member question, Officers advised that although the percentage of 
fixed term exclusions at Special Schools within Hillingdon (49.06%) was well above 
local and national averages, 95% of these exclusions had related to one school. 
Improvements had been made and the latest available figures showed a reduction in 
this type of exclusion. 
 
There were two primary schools within the Borough that had five forms of entry. There 
was no evidence to show that the size of a school had a significant impact on pupil 
performance. Instead, leadership, governance and scrutiny of a school were the key 
factors that determined results. 
Members questioned how school performance was moderated at primary level. 
Officers advised that there were three levels of moderation. This took place internally 
within schools and externally via the Department for Education's Standards and Testing 
Agency. The moderation process was also subject to scrutiny.  
 
The Committee questioned whether it was the case that schools were able to obtain 
credit for the results of pupils who had sat examinations at institutions other than their 
own school. It was confirmed that this was an issue and that the academic results 
obtained by pupils at a school would not always fully reflect its success, or otherwise. 
This was due to external factors, such as pupils receiving private tuition. 
 
A Member questioned whether the Council was aware of issues in relation to funding 
payments made to schools with regard to specific pupils and whether schools were 
aware of their obligations. It was also questioned whether checks could be made with 
schools. These payments were not ring-fenced and could therefore be spent on 
provision that did not directly benefit the child in question. It was confirmed that the 
issue was due for consideration and that a thematic review could be considered. This 
would be shared amongst all schools and it was noted that audit testing could be used 
to confirm how funding was being spent by schools. It was suggested that the issue be 
given further consideration by the Committee later in 2015. 
 
The Committee questioned why the Ofsted judgements against school inspections had 
only been compared against national averages and not with other London Boroughs. It 
was suggested that this could be because such a comparison would make Hillingdon's 
performance look less good and that Hillingdon's Ofsted performance, was in fact, the 
ninth worst of the thirty-two London Boroughs. Officers acknowledged that there were 
some weaknesses in some of the Borough's schools and the Council was challenging 
schools to raise their standards. 
 

Page 5



  

Concerns were raised by Members that while performance for the seven key subjects 
at Foundation Stage (age 3 to 5) showed improvement across all areas compared to 
2013, performance remained below the national and outer London averages. Officers 
advised that investment from Council officers would help to address issues. Last year 
there had been a focus on maths, while the focus during the current year was on 
improving literacy skills. 
 
A Member noted that the names of the schools requiring improvement had not been 
provided in the report and officers advised that this information could be provided to the 
Committee separately. 
 
Resolved: That: 
 

1. The spending of payments provided to schools to support specific pupils 
be investigated and a report brought to the Committee later in 2015. 

2. Officers to provide Democratic Services with the names of the schools 
within Hillingdon that required improvement, for circulation to the 
Commitee. 

3. The report be noted. 
 

70. SINGLE MEETING REVIEW - HILLINGDON'S IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY (SEND) REFORMS - DRAFT REPORT  
(Agenda Item 8) 
 

 The Chairman introduced the Draft Final Report for the single meeting review, 
'Hillingdon's Implementation of the Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 
Reforms.' Committee Members acknowledged and endorsed the work already 
undertaken to implement the Reforms and agreed the report and recommendations as 
presented. 
 
Resolved: That: 
 

1. That the Committee agreed the Draft Report as presented by the Chairman. 
2. That the Chairman would present the Draft Report to Cabinet on 23 April 

2015. 
 

71. FORWARD PLAN 2014 / 2015  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

 Resolved: That: 
 

1. The Forward Plan be noted. 
 

72. WORK PROGRAMME 2014 / 2015  (Agenda Item 10) 
 

 The following additions to the Committee's Work Programme were noted: 
 

1. A completed Children's Social Care Improvement Plan would be brought to the 
April 2015 meeting. 

2. An item in relation to auditing of the performance of secondary schools be 
added to the work programme for the April 2015 meeting. 

 
Resolved: That: subject to the above amendments, the Work Programme be 
noted. 
 

Page 6



  

  
The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.30 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Jon Pitt on 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes is to 
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

UPDATE ON CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

Contact Officer: Vince Clark 
       Telephone: 01895 277356 

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
The purpose of this paper is to provide a briefing report on the development of 
improvement activities that have been incorporated into the Children and Young People's 
Services Improvement Plan (SIP). The SIP has been developed to provide a framework for 
ongoing improvement activity within the service with the intention of providing an 
'outstanding' service to the children and young people of Hillingdon. The SIP also includes 
the 11 residual actions from the Ofsted improvement plan. .  
 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 
 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
1. Notes the contents of this paper.       
2. Endorses the Service Improvement plan. 
3. Endorses the proposal within this paper to report back to the Children, Young People 

& Learning Policy Overview Committee in July 2015. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Background 
 
1 To achieve the service vision, this plan has been developed using seven work streams 

(see below). It outlines the priority areas of activity required to improve the overall level 
of provision for children receiving services from social care. The plan also 
acknowledges the urgency required to deliver better outcomes for the children within 
Hillingdon. This plan enhances the work already completed as part of the Ofsted 
Improvement Plan 2014 and ensures that recent improvements are sustained and built 
upon. 
 

2 In order to deliver the required improvements the first work stream relates to the 
development of a stable workforce which is capable of undertaking good quality 
assessments, offer defined interventions, engage effectively with families and partners, 
and deliver timely decision-making for children at critical points across the Children’s 
Pathway.  

 
3 The plan has the political, corporate and senior leadership needed to deliver the 

improvements required. Implementation of the plan will be monitored through the 
Senior Management Team within Children and Young People's Services (CYPS) and 
overseen by the Performance Monitoring Board chaired by the Chief Executive. 
Accountability for delivery of the plan has primarily been devolved to the Assistant 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



 
Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Directors who have responsibility for improving outcomes for their respective service 
areas. 
 

4 The improvement plan is designed to deliver a sustainable improvement programme 
through good social work practice. The high level work streams are: 
 

1. Workforce development 
2. Performance improvement work in Triage, MASH and Children Social Work 

Teams  
3. Defining new ways of working within the CSWTs 
4. Improving outcomes for Looked After Children (LAC) and Young People 
5. Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision 
6. Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management 

arrangements 
7. Effective Quality Assurance 

 
Contextual Information 
 
5 In August 2014 the level of risk in the Children's Social Work Teams was deemed to be 

unacceptably high. This followed a high degree of disruption and changes in all levels 
of management and staffing within the service. A significant additional amount of 
resource was committed to the service which was used to implement a range of 
recovery actions and ensure that the service was stabilised. The recovery actions have 
successfully stabilised the service and the SIP will now drive forward further work to 
embed and sustain service improvements.  
 

Service Priorities 
 
6 The overarching priorities within the plan are: 

 

• That the whole service maintains a relentless focus on good outcomes for 
children. 

• Deliver a successful recruitment plan coupled with the implementation of a flatter 
management structure as part of a wider effective workforce plan to ensure 
good practice management, training and supervision (see work stream 1 and 6). 

• Maintain good Triage, MASH, Social Work Teams to work with children and 
families at an early stage to prevent the need for further intervention where 
possible (see work streams 2 and 3). 

• Deliver a range of good outcomes for LAC to be achieved through timely court 
intervention, focused care planning, and good participation from children and 
young people in their care planning (see work streams 4 and 5). 

• Embed the Quality Assurance Framework to deliver good practice management, 
oversight, and good casework practice throughout the service (see work stream 
7). 

• Ensure good value for money by getting the spend over 2015-16 for CYPS in 
line with base budget, primarily by transitioning out of the Skylakes contract and 
reducing the number of agency / interim staff across the social care workforce 
(see work stream 1 and 6). 

Page 10



 
Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

7 The SIP includes a set a quality assurance programme as detailed in work stream 7 
and will include the effective implementation of the Quality Assurance Framework to 
ensure good management oversight and an evidence based approach to the 
improvement activity. 
 

8 The specific actions related to the seven work streams are encapsulated within the 
Social Care Improvement Action plan which is the main appendix of the SIP. 

 
Benchmarking against statistical neighbours 
 
9 The SIP and action plan are based on an assessed level of demand and need which 

has been benchmarked against statistical neighbours and national averages: 
 

• Referral and assessment have a maximum of 45 days to conclude their 
assessment. The current staffing levels have improved performance in this area 
with the Assessment Teams currently achieving 30 day average.   

• The volume assumptions have been tested against benchmarking with other local 
authorities to ensure that the whole service is comfortably within the range expected 
for good outcomes.   

• The service has achieved the need to maintain caseloads at an average of no more 
than 18 cases per qualified social worker. There will be a differential within this 
average figure across the different service teams to take into account the variances 
in work patterns. For example social workers in assessment teams will have an 
average of 15 whilst those in Children in Need teams will have 18. 

 
Workforce strategy 
 
10 As reported to the Committee previously, a critical element of the SIP will be the 

successful recruitment of permanent staff coupled with the implementation of a flatter 
management structure. The SIP will deliver a social work structure built around a model 
of one team manager with a maximum of 6 social workers to supervise. This will 
strengthen accountability for good practice within the teams and will maintain the pod 
business support system. This SIP will also implement the advanced practitioner role to 
work with the QA service to improve practice quality and offer practice leadership. 
Work stream 1 includes details of the workforce strategy to deliver effective recruitment 
into the social work teams. 
 

Further Review and Report Back to Children, Young People & Learning (CYPL) 
Policy Overview Committee (POC) 
 
11 It is proposed that the SIP be subject to quarterly reports to the CYPL POC and that 

the next detailed progress report will be submitted in July 2015. 
     
Tony Zaman 
Interim Director of Children and Young People’s Services 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
1. Children's Social Care Services Improvement Plan 2015 - 16 
2. Children's Social Care Service Improvement Action Plan 2015 - 16 

 

Page 12



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

London Borough of Hillingdon 

Children's Social Care Services 

Improvement Plan 

2015-16 

 
 

Version 1 final  

March 2015 

 

 

 

  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 1 of 20 
Page 13



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Contents 

1. Hillingdon’s vision for vulnerable children 

2. Overarching priorities for 2015-16 

3. Work streams 

Work stream 1: Workforce development 

Measurements of progress 

Work stream 2: Performance improvement work in Triage, MASH and CSWT 

Outcomes of the work stream 

Measurement of initial progress (6 months) 

Measurements of progress (12 months) 

Work stream 3: Defining new ways of working within the CSWTs 

Outcomes of the  work stream 

Measurements of initial progress (6 months) 

Measurements of progress (12 months) 

Work stream 4: Improving outcomes for LAC & Young People 

Outcomes of the work stream 

Measurement of progress (6 months) 

Measurements of progress (12 months) 

Work stream 5: Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision 

Outcomes of the work stream 

Measurement of progress (6 months) 

Measurements of progress (12 months) 

Work stream 6: Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management 

arrangements 

Outcomes of the work stream 

Measurement of progress 

Work stream 7: Effective Quality Assurance 

Outcomes of the work stream 

Measurement of progress (6 months) 

Appendix 1 - Children's social care improvement action plan 2014-16 

 

  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 2 of 20 
Page 14



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

1. Hillingdon’s vision for vulnerable children  

To deliver an outstanding Social Care Service for Hillingdon’s children and young people 

in line with the Children’s Pathway work programme. With a greater focus on prevention 

and getting it right through early support, Children's Social Care Services will focus on 

offering accessible good quality support for those families that require specialist 

interventions.  

What does Hillingdon’s vision mean for children and families in social care? 

Our vision is to ensure that every child and family who comes to our attention has: 

● Their needs and vulnerabilities assessed very quickly 

● Any risks children face are quickly identified, and are reduced as a result of our 

involvement 

● If families need medium-long term support, this is done by a capable social worker who 

has time to spend with them 

● If we cannot achieve positive safe change for children in their family, we offer 

additional specialist support and are clear about our responsibilities and their rights 

● If children cannot live safely in their family, we work with the wider family to ensure 

they remain within their community, and if this is not feasible we provide good quality 

alternative homes on a permanent basis 

● We talk to and listen to children and families through our involvement and where 

possible act on their concerns. 

To achieve the vision, this plan has been developed using the Transformation Children’s 

Pathway work streams. It outlines the priority areas of activity required to improve the 

overall level of provision for children receiving services from social care. The plan also 

acknowledges the urgency required to deliver better outcomes for the children within 

Hillingdon. This plan enhances the work already completed as part of the Ofsted 

Improvement Plan 2014 and ensures that recent improvements are sustained and built 

upon. 

In order to deliver this, Children's Social Care Services needs a stable workforce who are 

capable of undertaking good quality assessments, offer defined interventions, engage with 

families and partners, and deliver timely decision-making for children at critical points 

across the Children’s Pathway.  

This plan has the political, corporate and senior leadership needed to deliver the 

improvements required. This plan will be monitored through the Senior Management 

Team within Children and Young People's Services (CYPS) and overseen by the 

Performance Monitoring Board chaired by the Chief Executive. 

Accountability for delivery of the plan has primarily been devolved to Assistant Directors 

who have responsibility for improving outcomes for their respective service areas. 

Note - It is important to acknowledge that in August 2014 the level of risk in the Children's 

Social Work Team (CSWT) was deemed to be unacceptably high. A significant additional 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 3 of 20 
Page 15



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

amount of resource was committed to the service, coupled with the arrival of a new Senior 

Management Team within CYPS. This Leadership team is now firmly focused on driving 

forward service improvements.   

2. Overarching priorities for 2015-16 

● Deliver a successful recruitment plan coupled with the implementation of a flatter 

management structure as part of a wider effective workforce plan to ensure good 

practice management, training and supervision (see work stream 1 and 6). 

● That the whole service maintains a relentless focus on good outcomes for children. 

● Maintain good Triage, MASH, Social Work Teams to work with children and 

families at an early stage to prevent the need for further intervention where possible 

(see work streams 2 and 3). 

● Deliver a range of good outcomes for LAC to be achieved through timely court 

intervention, focused care planning, and good participation from children and young 

people in their care planning (see work streams 4 and 5). 

● Embed the Quality Assurance Framework to deliver good practice management, 

oversight, and good casework practice throughout the service (see work stream 7). 

● Ensure good value for money by getting the spend over 2015-16 for CYPS in line 

with base budget, primarily by transitioning out of the Skylakes contract and 

reducing the number of agency / interim staff across the social care workforce (see 

work stream 1 and 6). 

3. Work streams 

There are 7 work streams that will deliver improvements to the specified services including 

a cross cutting work stream 'embedding new ways of working and improved practice 

management arrangements'. There are also interdependencies with projects led by 

Residents Services and these are identified and acknowledged within the work streams.  

The actions identified in the plan are developed to ensure successful embedding of 

re-designed services through good social work practice. The plan's objective is to ensure 

that changes implemented are sustainable in the longer-term. The high level work streams 

that contain the specific actions that will deliver service improvement are: 

1. Workforce development 

2. Performance improvement work in Triage, MASH and CSWT 

3. Defining new ways of working within the CSWTs 

4. Improving outcomes for Looked After Children (LAC) and Young People 

5. Improving the quality of Fostering & Adoption provision 

6. Embedding new ways of working and improved practice management 

arrangements 

7. Effective Quality Assurance  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 4 of 20 
Page 16



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Work stream 1: Workforce development 
a. HR Workforce and Organisational Development are leading on developing a 

Recruitment and Workforce Development plan. Improvements include the following: 

 

● Updated website to enable prospective applicants to have a good understanding of 

what Hillingdon can offer and expectations of the role of a Social Worker. 

● Applicant packs to contain all relevant information and guidance when applicants 

considering Hillingdon as their chosen workplace. Explanation contained in the 

pack of supervision, POD work, support etc. 

● Recruitment process through to delivery to meet the needs of the service in line 

with the improvement plan. 

● Induction process for every new worker to be embedded as standard practice, and 

to achieve 100% compliance with current staff receiving a refresher induction to 

update their knowledge. 

● AYSE support to be embedded, with clear standards and requirements set out to 

encourage these newly qualified workers to remain in Hillingdon long-term. 

● Social Work Pathway to be embedded to ensure career structure is supporting 

individual needs. 

 

b. The service is supporting this work stream. Improvements include the following: 

 

● Supervision structures to be embedded to ensure 100% compliance and delivery, 

including recording and performance management processes to be clear and 

robust in dealing with competency issues. 

● PADA reaches 100% completion on time and is robust in identifying current 

practices of the worker, identifying learning needs and having a SMART 

development plan to meet these needs. 

● Management development plan to be completed for all managers to support their 

practice with clear measures of performance incorporated in their development plan 

/ PADA. 

 

Measurements of progress 

See HR Recruitment and Workforce Development plan to avoid duplication.  

 

Status of the work stream a: In implementation via HR’s Recruitment and Workforce 

Development plan. 

 

Status of the work stream b: In implementation via action plan. 

 

 

  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 5 of 20 
Page 17



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Work stream 2: Performance improvement work in 

Triage, MASH and CSWT 
This is the current range of activities from the Children's Social Work Teams (CSWT) with 

the support of the managed service Skylakes team. Which aims to stabilise the service by 

reducing caseloads and reviewing all the Children In Need (CIN) cases. There is a focus 

on closing cases where there has been little casework activity or making a clear plan for 

social work intervention on these cases, and ensuring timely decisions for children across 

the pathway. From November 2014, Skylakes will provide a referral / intake team for all 

new social care cases, and will ensure that they have an appropriate assessment within 

agreed timescales. The CSWT will work with cases post assessments and will use the 

additional capacity provided by Skylakes to review and reduce cases that have been in 

the service for a number of months. 

Outcomes of the work stream 

All children accessing targeted social work services will receive a consistent and timely 

assessment intervention by: 

● Improved and consistent decision-making by the Triage and MASH teams. 

● Caseloads are to the standard level and in line with current resource capacity. 

● Best Value is obtained from Skylakes team in that they deliver to contract showing 

consistent good performance and to an acceptable practice standard.  

● No case to be open without a plan for over 6-8 weeks within the service. 

● In 2015-16 a feasible benchmark of case duration for CIN and CP (Child Protection) 

will be able to be set, as well as step up and step down targets. 

Measurement of initial progress (6 months) 

● Performance data showing an appropriate level of contacts and consistent conversion 

rate to referrals into Social Care. 

● Performance data - weekly target to reduce overall CIN cases by 25 (see model of 

impact on CIN cases), with weekly meetings with managers to review performance 

against target. Data-set has been designed to show CIN case trajectory across all 

teams including Skylakes.  

● Service undertakes regular supervision audits and PADA reviews. (Residual Ofsted 

action). 

● Contract oversight - Performance Indicators are set and regular meetings are held on 

risks and issues. Partnership framework is established. 

● Caseloads in the CSWTs  to be in line with London AD standards document (average 

15 for Duty and Assessment staff, 18 for CP / CIN and 14 for LAC). 

This work stream’s initial success will form the baseline to re-establish the Children's 

Pathway and will be a critical factor in staff re-engagement.  

Measurements of progress (12 months) 

● Audits and data indicating consistent decision-making from Triage and Mash. 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 6 of 20 
Page 18



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

● There will be an increase in families stepping down at key points in social care (at 

contacts, post assessment and during CP / CIN work). 

● All assessments to be completed within timescales. (Residual Ofsted Action). 

● Audits of assessment indicate good quality, child’s voice, and leading to quicker and 

better decision-making. (Residual Ofsted Action). 

● CIN families remain in the service for an average of 5 months with the vast majority 

stepping down to early support. 

● CP families remain in the service for 9-12 months with two thirds stepping down to 

early support and a third being stepped up. 

● Pre-proceedings work will be delivered in an average of 12-14 weeks. 

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s 

vision for children. 

Status of the work stream:  In implementation via action plan. 

 

  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 7 of 20 
Page 19



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Work stream 3: Defining new ways of working within 

the CSWTs 

This  work stream will review and improve the current operating model in order to realign 

the CSWT service with the Children's Pathway and strengthen the prevention model. 

Activities include: 

● Utilising Skylakes to act as a referral and assessment team to explore if such an 

addition to the pathway model would maintain the improvements expected.   

● Embed consistent thresholds in Triage and MASH in line with the Children's Pathway, 

and ensure these are tightly defined and managed.  

● To understand and plan demand at key points from Triage to Permanency (service 

demand flow map). 

● Triage to work with the Single Point of Contact project (being led by Residents 

Services - interdependency). 

● To focus on improving practice in key Ofsted priority areas: assessment, chronology, 

timeliness of decisions, and interventions for children. 

● Define a private Fostering service with dedicated resource, and plan to increase 

referrals, and ensure all statutory regulations are met.  

● Bring the specialist parenting assessment service into the current structure, expand its 

remit to include interventions, evaluation and increase work-flow, in line with new 

target for pre-proceedings work. 

● Update transfer protocol to ensure consistent and smarter transfer process.  

● Quality Assurance of process to ensure best practice and the voice of the child 

remains at the centre of our work with each family. 

● Working with the whole service to promote a structured and sound service delivery 

model that is clearly understood by all and achievable in its implementation. 

● Achieve stability by recruiting permanent staff in a phased manner throughout the year, 

implement new social work pathways and wider workforce planning (see separate 

recruitment plan). 

● Focused work with the QA service including commissioning of training  on good 

chronologies and assessment. 

● Focused training and site bites on good quality assessments, chronologies (Residual 

Ofsted Action). 

● Introduce Domestic Violence tools (CADA / Matrix) as part of assessment. (Residual 

Ofsted Action). 

● Agree the future for the Parenting Assessment Service and work flow. 

● Review the service model for asylum children aligned with wider transformation and 

funding arrangements.  

● Snapshot of Emergency Duty Team to scope any issues and risks. 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 8 of 20 
Page 20



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Outcomes of the  work stream 

● Integration of the Skylakes resource into the Children’s Pathway to deliver a service 

as well as release capacity for the CSWT to focus on performance improvement.  

● Improved through-put of work from referral to social care planning to permanency, 

with a clear focus on legal planning and pre-proceedings work (Early Intervention, 

CIN, CP, LAC or Children’s Pathway). 

● Effective response to children and young people with clear outcomes that are 

achievable and timely.  

● Good engagement with families in order for them to understand and take 

responsibility to promote change and in turn safeguard their own children.  

● Implement the agreed recruitment plan and implement workforce planning. 

Measurements of initial progress (6 months) 

● Skylakes and Hillingdon are able to embed a referral and assessment team that 

delivers early outcomes, and evidently contributes to the reduction of caseloads 

through CSWT1 and CSWT1, by creating capacity in these teams to close, step 

down and progress casework. The evaluation will feed into any further work on the 

Children’s Pathway. 

● A service demand flow map including demand and capacity will be established to 

ensure there is appropriate capacity at key points in the Children’s Pathway. 

● The resource is flexed and aligned with the transitional approach and dependent on 

recruitment. 

● Private Fostering lead is identified, project group is set up, audit of current cases 

are completed with learning. 

● The Parenting Assessment Service staff are brought into the Hillingdon structure, 

the remit is expanded with the placing of the specialist Mental Health Worker. 

● There is an increase in Legal planning meetings, with an increase in families in 

pre-proceedings in line with making timely decisions for children. 

● Case transfer panel is established, transfer check list (good practice) is used and 

cases are transferred at agreed points more consistently.   

● Improvement in timeliness of assessments completed. 

● A focused improvement project on assessment and chronology.  

● Number of complaints will reduce and response time will improve. 

● Partners feedback will be sought.  

● Monthly case audits will have 100% compliance. 

● We will meet our statutory obligations for the privately fostered children in the 

Social Work Service. 

● Recruitment of first line managers is effective as we reduce 100% current agency 

staff in management positions to 40% or less.  

● Aslyum and parenting assessment teams better defined.  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 9 of 20 
Page 21



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Measurements of progress (12 months) 

● Percentage of work judged good or better - 35% by the end March 2015, 50% by 

end September 2015, 80% by end March 2016.  

● Private fostering referrals will increase. 

● Audit of decision-making at front door and to ICPC (test thresholds) is planned for 

April 2015, which will give us up to date position re. consistency and areas for 

further improvement. 

● Training roll out on assessments. 

● All chronologies completed and of good quality. 

● For families in pre-proceedings we work to a 12-14 week timescale to deliver more 

timely decisions for children. 

● The timeliness and quality of assessments improve and this is evidenced by audits, 

feedback, staff feedback, supervision audits and  timely step downs / step-ups. 

● There will be an established mechanism to seek service user feedback, and 

findings will be part of the learning framework for staff. 

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan.  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 10 of 20 
Page 22



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Work stream 4: Improving outcomes for Looked After 

Children & Young People 

To ensure the Children in Care (CIC) teams are stabilised to deliver caseloads at a 

manageable level, which will assist in the implementation of good social work practice. A 

range of good outcomes for Looked After Children (LAC) to be achieved through timely 

court intervention, focused care planning and good participation from children and young 

people in their care planning. The work stream will therefore ensure that there is full and 

effective implementation of the Public Law Outline (PLO) that will see all children achieve 

a final care order and permanency plan within 26 weeks. All statutory requirements will be 

met and audits will provide evidence of good service user engagement within their care 

planning.  

Outcomes of the work stream 

● All LAC cases will be allocated to ensure they receive good permanent outcomes 

within 12-18 months (return home, long term fostering, adoption, SGO (Special 

Guardianship Orders), connected persons). 

● All cases will be worked as a 'whole service' with social workers coordinating 

interventions from the virtual school, designated health professionals, and other key 

agencies (SDQ , LAC reviews, LAC visits, PEPs, Health Assessments). 

● Improve the LAC journey to make it more timely and embed good practice within the 

CIC and Young Person’s Teams. 

● Review the role of the Court Progression Officer to ensure all court proceedings to be 

concluded within the 26 week time scale (unless in exceptional circumstances the care 

process is extended by the Court).  

● All care leavers will have a pathway plan and good EET and housing outcomes. 

● Improve the level of engagement and consultation with LAC through better practice 

and roll out of Viewpoint to all LAC to involve them in their care planning. 

 

This work stream's success will form the baseline to re-establish the Children's Pathway 

and will be a critical factor in staff re-engagement.  

Measurement of progress (6 months) 

● Performance data - weekly target to allocate all LAC cases, meet statutory 

reviewing and visiting targets, with weekly meetings with managers to review 

performance against target.  

● Health, education and placement outputs demonstrate good outcomes for LAC. 

● Monthly PLO reporting against 26 week target - continue to reduce number of 

'legacy cases' to final hearing and conclude proceedings. Ensure all current work 

started since October 2014 is concluded within 26 weeks. 

● Successful interim recruitment to all social work and team manager posts and 

caseloads to be within the range of 14-16 cases per qualified social worker. 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 11 of 20 
Page 23



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Measurements of progress (12 months) 

● Average caseloads remain within 14-16 cases per qualified social worker. 

● All LAC cases allocated and children and young people have their statutory 

requirements met. 

● 80% of audits and data indicating good with evidence of consistent decision-making in 

care planning and timely outcomes within the CIC teams. 

● All Public Law Outline cases will be completed within 26 weeks (unless specified by 

the Court). 

● 100% of care leavers will have a pathway plan with clear objectives 

● Performance will be top quartile for EET and housing outcomes. 

● 80% of audits of care plans indicate good quality, child’s voice and leading to quicker 

and better decision-making.  

● Looked After Children receive good outcomes within 12-18 months (return home, long- 

term fostering, adoption, SGO, Connected Persons). 

● All pre-proceedings work will be delivered in an average of 14 weeks. 

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s 

vision for children. 

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan. 

 

  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 12 of 20 
Page 24



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Work stream 5: Improving the quality of Fostering & 

Adoption provision 

To change the current operating model in order to realign the Fostering & Adoption 

services with the Children's Pathway, to deliver good and stable placement provision and 

permanency outcomes for LAC. The work stream will ensure that the service has sufficient 

numbers of placements to provide stable, secure and safe placements for children and 

young people who are looked after. The service will also deliver extra support to post 

permanence to ensure successful outcomes for those children in adoption, placed under 

SGOs (Special Guardianship Orders) and long-term foster placements. Activities include: 

● Prototype the 'managed service project' (provided by Coram & HCL) to allocate all 

backlog and new carer assessments until the end of May 2015, and to ensure no drift 

or further backlogs within the service.  

● Evaluate the ‘managed service’ project to consider if such a model can be adapted or 

expanded to deliver and maintain the improvements expected from the initial project, 

which will include measuring the difference in performance (quality of assessments 

and improved throughput) between managed service prototypes and Hillingdon's 

service. 

● Use the evaluation to plan for demand at key points within the Fostering and Adoption 

service and implement a ‘best value’ placement service for the LAC model. 

● Implement strong management oversight and evidence of improved permanence 

outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon. 

● Arrange staff and carer workshops to ensure full consultation and explore staff 

experience and views of current operating model, possible changes and proposals.  

● Improved QA assurance and independent review of carers in line with national 

standards and good practice. 

● Improve the management and coordination of the Adoption & Fostering Panel. 

Outcomes of the work stream 

● Allocation and completion of all outstanding assessments and new assessments 

coming into the service between the start of December 2014 and end of May 2015, 

through the implementation of the prototype managed service. 

● Deliver top quartile adoption and permanence outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon. 

● Increase in the number of good quality Hillingdon foster placements available to LAC.  

● Reduce the number of Independent Foster Agency (IFA) placements used by LAC in 

Hillingdon. 

● Sufficient good quality permanent placements options (return home, long-term 

fostering, adoption, SGO, connected persons) for LAC children in Hillingdon. 

● Improve the number of LAC placed within their own community (inside 20 mile radius). 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 13 of 20 
Page 25



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

● Timely administration and management of the Panel process. 

Measurement of progress (6 months) 

● Implementation of the 'managed service project' (provided by Coram & HCL) to 

allocate all assessment activity as outlined in the project above. 

● Performance data - weekly target to allocate all carer assessments within statutory and 

good practice guidance.  

● Re-design the service structure to meet the new service model requirements. 

● Improved permanent placement outcomes for LAC in Hillingdon - improvement in the 

performance as measured by the national adoption score card.   

● Reduction in the number of children moved further than 20 miles from their home 

address to minimum - less than 10% of LAC (36). 

● QA framework provides evidence of good quality social work practice on all 

assessments undertaken by Coram (80% judged good or better and no inadequate). 

Measurements of progress (12 months) 

● Fully implement the new service model and ensure fully staffed. 

● Maintain allocation of all assessments to meet national standards of quality and 

timeliness - 100% within timescale. 

● Audits and data indicating consistently good quality analysis of assessments and 

timely presentation to Panel (80% good or better and no inadequate judgements). 

● Number of in-house foster placements to increase to 110 by April 20116. 

● The proportion of IFA placements to be less than 40%.  

● Reduction in the number of children moved further than 20 miles from their home 

address to minimum - less than 10% of LAC (36). 

● Looked After Children receive good outcomes within 12-18 months (return home, long- 

term fostering, adoption, SGO, Connected Persons). 

This work stream's continued success will form the baseline to deliver to Hillingdon’s 

vision for children. 

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan. 

 

  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 14 of 20 
Page 26



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Work stream 6: Embedding new ways of working and 

improved practice management arrangements  

To improve the overall standard of practice and social work intervention across Children’s 

Social Care Services. The aim is to deliver effective, timely and safe service interventions 

for the most vulnerable children in our community. This will include the strengthening of 

practice management arrangements and the level of professional supervision, training and 

guidance offered to all social work staff. The service will improve the level of practice 

through consistent management oversight, and practice recording on Protocol electronic 

recording system. Activities will include: 

● To support better outcomes the staffing model and any changes to be aligned with 

delivery demand (service demand flow map). 

● To support best practice the staffing and casework model will provide stable and 

balanced (represented by the London ADs work on Standards as well as Hillingdon's 

view of average caseloads minus one). 

● To ensure good management oversight and support of good practice, achieve a flatter 

structure to deliver clearer accountability by expanding the number of team managers 

with small (maximum 6) teams of social workers.  

● Invest in expert advanced practitioner roles in line with the Munro principle to build 

practice capability at the point of delivery. 

● Invest in staff professional development and clearer alignment with service 

requirements.  

● All changes to be made with transparency, consultation and care. 

Outcomes of the work stream 

This will deliver a social work structure built around a model of one team manager with a 

maximum of 6 social workers to supervise. This will strengthen accountability for good 

practice within the teams and will maintain the POD structure. This model will also invest 

in the advanced practitioner role to work with the QA service to improve practice quality, 

and offer practice leadership in line with the POD model. It will be aligned with workforce 

planning and have clear social work pathways with an embedded training needs analysis.  

Effective accountability and management oversight of practice improvement activity. 

Measurement of progress 

● Simplified practice management structure in place - April 2015. 

● The average case load across the service remains at or below 18 per qualified 

social worker (in accordance with the service requirement's). 

● All social workers receive regular monthly supervision. 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 15 of 20 
Page 27



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

● Monthly QA audit report - percentage of work judged good or better - 35 % by end 

March 2015, 50% by end September 2015, 80% end March 2016.  

● Performance data - weekly target to allocate all CIN, CP and LAC cases, meet 

statutory reviewing and visiting targets, with weekly meetings with managers to 

review performance against target. In 2015-16 a feasible benchmark of case 

duration for CIN and CP will be able to be set, as well as step up and step down 

targets, and we should achieve the 26 week proceedings target to ensure more 

timely decisions for children. 

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan. 

 

  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 16 of 20 
Page 28



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Work stream 7: Effective Quality Assurance  

The work stream will ensure the full and effective implementation of the QA Framework, 

embedding a consistent approach to improving the quality of practice to ‘good’ as a norm 

and better outcomes for children. To ensure demonstrable measurable outcomes for 

children and their families with all performance information linked into effective 

mechanisms for achieving change. The QA framework will support managers to have a 

strong oversight of the practice and outcomes within their teams. Activities include: 

● Implementation of the new QA Framework by 1st April 2015. 

● Collation and analysis of Quality Assurance systems across the service, 

incorporating improvements achieved through good practice and learning to inform 

future planning and promote improvement. This will include: 

 

o Court Tracker 

o Fostering Panel Advisor 

o Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Prevention Manager 

o MASH process 

o Transfer and allocation process 

o Practice Development Mentor role 

o Dispute resolution process 

 

● Embedding and improving the Signs of Safety CP Conference process to ensure 

consistent multi agency involvement with SMART plans being achieved. 

● Implementation of effective Independent Reviewing Service developing a robust 

constructive challenge, mid-point reviewing and dispute resolution process.  

● Implementation of tracking and improving completion of all CP Conferences and 

LAC reviews to be completed within statutory timescales.  

● Voice of the child being evident throughout CP and LAC processes through 

relaunch of Viewpoint by April  2015.  

● Review and implementation of new ways of working within the Local Safeguarding 

Children’s Board (LSCB) ensuring consistent and robust multi agency responsibility 

and ownership. 

● Implementation of Practice Standards in each area of the service to support 

workers in defining their role and expectations that are clearly promoted. 

● Development of the Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy (IDVA) Service 

across Hillingdon supported by the MOPAC initiative, following review by the end of 

July 2015. To include areas of support being increased in MASH, Housing and 

Health.  

● Development of the YIDVA (Young People’s IDVA service) to ensure peer on peer 

abuse is tackled consistently. 

● FGC (Family Group Conference) Service  will be developed to offer FGCs at any 

point along the CYPS Social Care continuum to prevent case escalation and further 

statutory intervention. 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 17 of 20 
Page 29



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

● Development of a CSE Strategy, Missing Person & Runaway Protocol to be 

implemented by the end of March 2015. Using learning from a recent joint 

operation with the Metropolitan Police which led to a successful conviction, and 

developing the new role of Child Sexual Exploitation Prevention. A local CSE 

strategy addressing CSE in Hillingdon which consists of key strategic objectives in 

line with 'Pan London Operating Protocol' to include multi agency partners. 

Outcomes of the work stream 

● An approach orientated around outcomes rather than processes will support 

practice managers to embed scrutiny and practice learning from audit into daily 

supervision and management in a rigorous way. 

● Improved QA Framework that drives improvement and learning across the service 

promoting Individual, Team and Service Development Plans. 

● Evidence of good practice models identified and implemented across the service as 

appropriate. 

● A robust Reviewing Service that quality assures consistently promoting good 

practice and challenging practice areas that require improvements. 

● The child's journey is evident that their views are considered in all aspects of 

decision making. 

● Structure and professional membership of the LSCB will be appropriate and will 

drive improvements in multi agency working across Hillingdon. 

● A robust and effective IDVA / YIDVA service that works with all services providing 

support in areas of domestic abuse, thus responding and sharing skills to address a 

wider cross section of Hillingdon in a more collaborative way. 

● FGC will reach prevent step up or escalations of concerns by targeting lower level 

case work. 

● A 'CSE strategy' to be progressed to enable all professionals to develop confidence 

and practice when identifying and responding to CSE concerns.  

Measurement of progress (6 months) 

● Launch the new QA Framework in April 2015. 

● Percentage of work judged good or better - 35% by the end March 2015, 50% by 

end September 2015. 

● Monthly Quality Assurance findings will drive improvement across the service 

developing clear action plans that are SMART. 

● CP Conferences and LAC reviews are completed within statutory timescales (95%) 

● LSCB responsibility in relation to safeguarding will be evidenced through audit and 

findings each quarter. 

● Implement Dispute Resolution Process with appropriate outcomes achieved in 

relevant timescales that improve outcomes for children and young people. 

● Implementation of Mid-point Reviews for care plans and child protection plans. 

● Viewpoint will see increased response to completing and evidencing child's views 

at specific meetings and assessments and providing feedback on the quality of 

practice. 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 18 of 20 
Page 30



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

● IDVA service performance measures will indicate an improved and more targeted 

service.  

● Higher rate of FGC referrals and good outcomes to prevent escalation to tier 3 

services or becoming looked after. 

● Development of CSE data in order to measure the level of concerns in line with 

national and local trends, with clear targets to be measured with the 'action plan' 

being reviewed quarterly and timescales measured against effectiveness. An 

annual review with new targets set as required. An action plan progress update to 

be reported to the LSCB board twice annually.  

 

Measurement of progress (12 months) 

● Fully embedded QA Framework. 

● Percentage of audit compliance 100%. 

● 80% of audits indicate good quality practice and evidence of the child’s voice in all 

assessments and plans by end of March 2016. 

● 80% of all social work judged good or better by end of March 2016. 

● Structured Review of Performance and Monthly Quality Assurance findings will 

continue to drive improvement across the service developing clear action plans that 

are SMART. 

● Fully embedded Mid-point Review and Dispute Resolution Process 

● 100% of all CP Conferences and LAC reviews are completed within statutory 

timescales. 

● 100% of CSE cases tracked and all have effective risk assessments and plans 

recorded. 

 

Status of the work stream: In implementation via action plan. 

 

  

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 19 of 20 
Page 31



 

London Borough of Hillingdon OFFICIAL CSCS improvement plan 

Appendix 1 - Children's social care improvement action 

plan 2014-16 

See separate action plan. 

 

Version 1 final OFFICIAL Page 20 of 20 
Page 32



     

   C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 I

m
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
5
-1

6
 

 T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 
P

la
n
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
v
e

n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 w
o
rk

 

s
tr

e
a
m

 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
T

h
is

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

t 
re

g
u
la

r 
in

te
rv

a
ls

 b
y
 t
h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

o
d
ie

s
: 

●
C

Y
P

S
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 (

F
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
) 

●
C

Y
P

S
 S

M
T

 (
M

o
n
th

ly
) 

●
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 B

o
a
rd

 (
M

o
n
th

ly
) 

●
D

e
p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
e

ti
n
g
 (

M
o
n
th

ly
) 

●
C

h
ild

re
n
, 
Y

o
u

n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 a
n

d
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
) 

●
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 B

o
a
rd

 (
w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a

m
s
 4

 &
 5

 -
 2

 m
o
n
th

ly
) 

●
L
o
c
a
l 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 B
o
a
rd

 (
w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 2

 &
 3

 -
 2

 m
o
n
th

ly
) 

  V
e
rs

io
n

 1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5

 
 

Page 33



W
o

rk
 s

tr
e
a
m

 1
: 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
- 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 D
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 

s
tr

e
a
m

 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

 i
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 L

e
a
d
e

r.
 S

e
e
 H

R
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
ro

a
d

m
a
p
 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

. 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 /

 P
ro

c
e
s

s
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 

R
e
f 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

L
e
a

d
 

S
ta

rt
 

D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 

D
a

te
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 -
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

M
e

a
s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 -

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

a
n

d
 K

e
y

 T
a

rg
e
ts

 

1
.1

 
U

p
d
a

te
 w

e
b

s
it
e
 t

o
 

e
n

a
b
le

 p
ro

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 

a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

g
o

o
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
f 

w
h
a

t 
H

ill
in

g
d
o

n
 

c
a
n

 o
ff
e

r 
a

n
d

 

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

ro
le

 o
f 
a
 S

o
c
ia

l 

W
o

rk
e

r 

H
R

 
A

p
ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

M
a
r 

2
0

1
6
 

M
e

e
ti
n
g
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 P
e
n

n
a

 

w
h

o
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
e
 i
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
. 

F
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

'e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

b
ra

n
d
'. 

In
it
ia

lly
 

w
e

 w
ill

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
 w

it
h
 P

e
n
n
a

 a
 

s
tr

o
n
g

 p
ro

p
o

s
it
io

n
 c

le
a

rl
y
 

a
rt

ic
u

la
ti
n
g

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

s
u
c
c
e

s
s
e

s
, 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n

, 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e

l 
a

n
d

 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e

 r
e

m
u

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 

o
n
 a

 n
e

w
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p

o
rt

a
l 

o
r 

'm
ic

ro
-s

it
e

' w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 l
a

te
r 

b
e
 u

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il.

 

T
B

C
 b

y
 H

R
 

O
n

 h
o

ld
 u

n
ti
l 
T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 

p
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

e
a

d
e

r 

1
.2

 
A

p
p

lic
a
n

t 
p
a

c
k
s
 t

o
 

c
o
n

ta
in

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 w

h
e

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n

ts
 

c
o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 

H
ill

in
g

d
o

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
ir
 

H
R

 
A

p
ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

J
u
ly

 

2
0

1
5
 

A
 n

e
w

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

J
o
b

 

P
ro

fi
le

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 c

a
re

e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 k
e

y
 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

T
B

C
 b

y
 H

R
 

O
n

 h
o

ld
 u

n
ti
l 
T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 

p
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

e
a

d
e

r 

2
 

 

 

Page 34



c
h
o

s
e

n
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

. 

E
x
p

la
n
a

ti
o
n
 

c
o
n

ta
in

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

, 

P
O

D
 w

o
rk

, 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

e
tc

. 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 a

n
d

 w
e
 w

ill
 i
n

v
it
e

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 '
g
ro

w
 y

o
u
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
c
a
re

e
r 

a
t 

H
ill

in
g

d
o
n

'.
 

1
.3

 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h

e
 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

H
R

  
M

a
y

2
0

1
5
 

M
a
r 

2
0

1
6
 

T
h
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

is
 i
n

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
la

c
e

 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 

w
it
h
 c

le
a

r 
d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 c

a
s
e

lo
a
d

s
, 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e

 r
e

m
u

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 a
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
ll 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 o

ff
e

r 
to

 s
o
c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
e

rs
. 
P

la
n

 t
o
 u

s
e

 

S
a
n

c
tu

a
ry

, 
w

h
o

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
e
 i
n
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 

U
K

, 
a
n

d
 H

C
L
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

d
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 o

v
e
rs

e
a
s
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
n

e
tw

o
rk

. 

T
B

C
 b

y
 H

R
 

O
n

 h
o

ld
 u

n
ti
l 
T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 

p
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

e
a

d
e

r 

1
.4

 
In

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
 n

e
w

 w
o

rk
e

r 
to

 

b
e

 e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d
 a

s
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 

a
n

d
 t
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 

1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 

w
it
h
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
ta

ff
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 r
e

fr
e

s
h

e
r 

in
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 t
o

 u
p

d
a
te

 

th
e
ir
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g
e
 

L
&

D
 

J
a
n
 

2
0

1
5
 

O
n
- 

g
o
in g
 

A
 4

 d
a

y
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d
 i
n
 

J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

5
. 
T

h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

u
n
s
 e

v
e

ry
 

m
o

n
th

 a
n

d
 i
n

v
it
e
s
 /
 e

x
p

e
c
ts

 

d
e
le

g
a
te

s
 t

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 

th
e

 N
e

w
 S

ta
rt

e
rs

 F
o
rm

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 M
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 

b
o
o

k
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 s
ta

ff
 o

n
to

 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 
n
e

w
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 

a
tt

e
n

d
e
d

 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 i
n
d
u

c
te

d
  

3
 

 

 

Page 35



T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
e
le

g
a
te

s
 

h
a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 o
v
e
r 

th
e

 l
a
s
t 

3
 

m
o

n
th

s
. 

T
o
 d

a
te

 a
ll
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 
h

a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n

d
e

d
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 e

it
h

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
y
 

s
ta

ff
 o

r 
s
tu

d
e
n

t 
s
o

c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
e

rs
. 

1
.5

 
A

Y
S

E
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d
, 

w
it
h

 

c
le

a
r 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
e

t 
o
u

t 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 t
h

e
s
e
 

n
e

w
ly

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d
 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 

H
ill

in
g

d
o

n
 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 

L
&

D
 

M
a

r 

1
5

 

O
n
- 

g
o
in g
 

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

m
o

n
th

 t
h

e
 

w
o

rk
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 

m
o

d
if
y
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 

o
ff
e
r 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 A

S
Y

E
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 w

h
e
re

 

g
a
p

s
 i
n
 t
h

a
t 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 

N
Q

S
W

’s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

. 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 
N

Q
S

W
’s

 

re
m

a
in

 i
n

 s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 

p
o

s
ts

, 
2
 y

e
a

rs
 a

ft
e

r 

q
u

a
lif

y
in

g
 

H
ig

h
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 A
S

Y
E

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 

N
Q

S
W

s
 t

a
k
in

g
 u

p
 

p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

t 
s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

 i
n

 H
ill

in
g

d
o

n
, 
a

n
d
 

c
re

a
ti
n

g
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 

g
ro

w
 f
u
tu

re
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

c
re

a
te

 a
 s

ta
b
le

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

1
.6

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 

P
a

th
w

a
y
 t

o
 b

e
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

c
a
re

e
r 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 

n
e

e
d
s
 

L
&

D
 

T
B

C
 

b
y
 

L
&

D
 

T
B

C
 

b
y
 

L
&

D
 

T
B

C
 b

y
 L

&
D

 
T

B
C

 b
y
 L

&
D

 
T

B
C

 b
y
 L

&
D

 

1
.7

 
S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g

 

a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in

g
 a

n
d
  

A
D

 C
iC

, 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
c

y
 &

 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

S
e
p

t 

2
0

1
5
 

A
ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 H

ill
in

g
d

o
n

’s
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 

P
o
lic

y
. 

 A
ll 

S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
s
u
p

e
rv

is
in

g
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

1
0

0
%

 C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e
 i
n

 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 t
im

e
ly

, 

g
o

o
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 i
n

 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

ill
in

g
d

o
n
 

S
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 P
o

lic
y
 

4
 

 

 

Page 36



p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 

c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 r

o
b
u

s
t 

in
 

d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

tw
o

 

w
e

e
k
s
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(a
g

e
n

c
y
 o

r 
p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t)

. 

1
.8

 
P

A
D

A
 r

e
a

c
h

e
s
 

1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

n
 

ti
m

e
 a

n
d

 i
s
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
in

 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
o

rk
e

r,
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 

le
a

rn
in

g
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 

h
a

v
in

g
 a

 S
M

A
R

T
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 t
o
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e
s
e
 n

e
e

d
s
 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in

g
 a

n
d
  

A
D

 C
iC

, 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
c

y
 &

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
6
 

A
ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

P
A

D
A

s
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 

th
e

ir
 t
e

a
m

s
. 
 

 A
ll 

S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
s
u
p

e
rv

is
in

g
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

P
A

D
A

 i
n
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 
tw

o
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(a

g
e

n
c
y
 o

r 

p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
t)

. 

P
A

D
A

 r
e

a
c
h
e

s
 1

0
0

%
 

c
o

m
p
le

ti
o

n
  

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 a

 P
A

D
A

 t
h
a

t 

c
le

a
rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l,
 

te
a

m
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 

fo
r 

th
a

t 
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 

a
n

d
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
p
la

n
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u
o

u
s
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
 

1
.9

 
M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 t
o
 

b
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

th
e
ir
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 w

it
h

 

c
le

a
r 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 o

f 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir

 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 /

 

P
A

D
A

 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

in

g
 a

n
d
  

A
D

 C
iC

, 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
c

y
 &

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
  

 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
6
 

A
ll 

S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. 

 

  

1
0

0
%

 o
f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 

h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
p
la

n
 

A
ll 

m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 a
 c

le
a
r 

p
la

n
 o

f 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 

  
 

5
 

 

 

Page 37



W
o

rk
 s

tr
e
a
m

 2
: 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 T
ri

a
g

e
, 
M

A
S

H
 a

n
d

 C
S

W
T

 

A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 P

ro
c

e
s
s

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 

R
e

f 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a

d
 

A
s
s
t 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

S
ta

rt
 

D
a
te

 

E
n

d
 

D
a

te
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 -

 A
c

ti
o

n
s
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

M
e
a

s
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 –

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

 a
n

d
 

K
e
y

 T
a
rg

e
ts

 

2
.1

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 a
n

d
 

c
o
n

s
is

te
n

t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
 b

y
 

th
e
 T

ri
a
g

e
 a

n
d

 

M
A

S
H

 t
e
a

m
s
 

   

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
T

ri
a

g
e
/ 

M
A

S
H

 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
6
 

●
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 

(d
e

m
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 

d
a
ta

 s
e

t)
is

 c
o

lla
te

d
 a

n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 

a
ro

u
n
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

, 

c
o
n

v
e
rs

io
n

 r
a

te
 t
o
 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 i
n

to
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

●
S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

s
 

re
g

u
la

r 
s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 

a
u
d

it
s
 a

n
d

 P
A

D
A

 

re
v
ie

w
s
 

●
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
u

d
it
s
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

a
n
d

 m
u

lt
i 
a
g

e
n

c
y
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
a

s
e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
. 

●
D

a
ta

  
a
ro

u
n
d

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 K

e
y
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

s
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 b
y
 

T
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 C

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
. 
S

e
lf
- 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a
rd

 

lin
e

 i
s
 c

o
lla

te
d
  

●
R

a
te

 o
f 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

p
e
r 

1
0

,0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 

th
e

 C
Y

P
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
  

●
R

a
te

 o
f 

s
e

c
ti
o
n

 4
7

 

e
n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 p

e
r 

1
1

0
,0

0
0
 

o
f 
th

e
 C

Y
P

 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

. 

●
%

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 l
e
a

d
in

g
 

to
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

(a
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

c
h
ild

 b
e

c
o
m

in
g

 a
 c

h
ild

 

in
 n

e
e

d
).

 

●
D

a
ta

  
a

ro
u
n

d
 K

e
y
 I
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 

a
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
  
T

h
e
 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
. 

S
e
lf
- 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
B

o
a

rd
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
  

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e

ig
h
b

o
u

rs
 

●
A

u
d
it
s
 a

n
d
 d

a
ta

 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
n
g

 

c
o
n

s
is

te
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n

-m
a
k
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 T
ri
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 M

a
s
h

. 
A

u
d
it
 

o
f 
d

e
c
is

io
n

- 
m

a
k
in

g
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 

fo
r 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0

1
5
 

●
O

n
 g

o
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

s
 a

n
d

 

d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g

 t
o
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 s
o
c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 M
A

S
H

 c
o
n

c
e
p

t 

6
 

 

 

Page 38



2
.2

 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 

s
te

p
p
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 a

t 

k
e
y
 p

o
in

ts
 i
n

 s
o

c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 (
a
t 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

, 

p
o

s
t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 C

P
 /

 C
IN

 

w
o

rk
) 

- 
s
e

e
n
 v

ia
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 

c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 d

a
ta

 s
e

t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
T

ri
a

g
e
/ 

M
A

S
H

  

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

O
n

- 

g
o

in
g

 

P
ro

to
c
o
l 
b
e

tw
e
e
n

 C
h
ild

re
n

 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d

 E
a

rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
o

 b
e

 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 a

ll 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 

a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 M
A

S
H

, 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 

W
o

rk
 T

e
a
m

 

 

●
%

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g
e

r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 

re
-r

e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
. 

   

2
.3

 
A

v
e

ra
g
e

 c
a
s
e
lo

a
d

s
 -

 

1
8

 c
a
s
e
s
 p

e
r 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
e

r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
 

C
h
ild

 i
n
 

N
e

e
d

 

J
a
n
 

2
0
1

5
 

O
n

- 

g
o

in
g

  

●
B

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 f
o

r 

c
a

s
e
lo

a
d
s
 a

g
re

e
 

a
g

re
e

d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t:
  

●
1
8

 f
o
r 

C
P

/C
IN

 (
C

S
W

T
) 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

●
R

e
s
o

u
rc

in
g
 a

n
d
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 

d
e

m
a

n
d

. 

●
1
0

0
%

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 
a
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

a
s
e
s
 

●
W

e
e

k
ly

 d
a

ta
 s

e
t 

in
d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 

a
n

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
 

o
f 

1
8

 c
h
ild

re
n
. 

●
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 

a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 w
it
h
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

a
b

le
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 o
n

 

th
e

 c
a

s
e
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 i
n
 

a
 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n

e
r 

w
it
h
 g

o
o

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
o

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
. 

●
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 f
le

x
ib

le
 u

s
e
 o

f 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 s

ta
ff

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

lig
n
e

d
 

w
it
h
 d

e
m

a
n
d

. 

7
 

 

 

Page 39



2
.4

 
B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 i
s
 

o
b

ta
in

e
d

 f
ro

m
 

S
k
y
la

k
e
s
 t
e
a

m
 i
n
 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 d

e
liv

e
r 

to
 

c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 
s
h
o

w
in

g
 

c
o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
g

o
o
d
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 t
o
 

a
n

 a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

N
o
v
 

2
0
1
4
  

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
6
 

●
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

- 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 I
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 

a
re

 s
e

t 
a

n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 

ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

is
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
. 

K
e

y
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

d
e

liv
e
ry

 m
o

d
e
l 
is

 a
g

re
e
d

 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
: 

●
Im

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 a

 5
 

w
e
e

k
 d

u
ty

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

th
a
t 
w

ill
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

 

d
u

ty
 t

a
s
k
s
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 n
e
e

d
. 

●
D

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 1

0
0
%

 o
f 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 

4
5

 d
a

y
s
 m

a
x
 w

it
h
 a

n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
0

 d
a

y
s
 

p
e

r 
a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

●
D

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 1

0
0
%

 o
f 

IC
P

C
 w

it
h

in
 1

5
 d

a
y
s
. 

●
%

fa
m

ili
e

s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

re
c
e

iv
e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

re
-r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
. 

●
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d
 

re
s
o
u

rc
e
d

. 

●
R

e
g
u

la
r 

ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

m
e

e
ti
n
g

s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

. 

●
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  
d
a

ta
 i
s
 

c
o

lla
te

d
 a

n
d

 s
h
o

w
s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

●
T

h
e
 a

d
d
e

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 S

k
y
la

k
e
s
 w

ill
 

a
lle

v
ia

te
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e

a
m

s
. 
R

e
s
u

lt
s
 

w
ill

 b
e

 s
e

e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
‘b

a
c
k
lo

g
’ 

c
a

s
e

s
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 w
o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 

w
it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

●
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
p
u

t 
o

f 

w
o

rk
 f
ro

m
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
to

 s
o

c
ia

l 

c
a

re
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 t
o

 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

c
y
, 
w

it
h
 a

 c
le

a
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 l
e
g

a
l 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
n

d
 p

re
-p

ro
c
e

e
d
in

g
s
 w

o
rk

 

(E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
, 

C
IN

, 

C
P

, 
L
A

C
 o

r 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 

P
a

th
w

a
y
).

 

 

 

8
 

 

 

Page 40



 
 

9
 

 

 

Page 41



W
o

rk
 s

tr
e
a
m

 3
: 

D
e
fi

n
in

g
 n

e
w

 w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 C

S
W

T
s

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 /
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

R
e

f 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a

d
 

A
s
s
t 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

S
ta

r

t D
a
te

 

E
n

d
 

D
a

t

e
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 -
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

M
e
a

s
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 –

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

 a
n

d
 

K
e
y

 T
a
rg

e
ts

 

3
.1

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e

r 
 

C
h
ild

 i
n
 

N
e

e
d

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
5
 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1

6
 

●
F

o
c
u
s
e
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
o
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 h

a
s
 

c
o
m

m
e
n

c
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
tw

o
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d
 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e

n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

s
 n

e
e

d
in

g
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

    ●
M

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 a

re
 t
ra

in
e
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
a
s
e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 

s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

c
le

a
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
. 

 

1
0

0
%

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 i
n
 

te
a

m
 m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

u
d

it
s
. 

 C
a
s
e
 a

u
d

it
s
 s

h
o

w
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 

g
ra

d
in

g
: 

●
3

5
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
5
 

●
5

0
%

 b
y
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
1

5
 

●
8

0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

 ●
1

0
0
%

 s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 

is
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o

rd
e
d

 t
o
 s

ta
ff
  

●
%

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

b
e
c
o

m
in

g
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 c
h
ild

 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 p

e
r 

●
S

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

c
o

n
ta

in
 c

le
a
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 a
n
d

 

in
fo

rm
e

d
 j
u

d
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
n

 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
 m

o
d

e
ls

 t
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

●
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 

c
h

ild
's

 v
o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

fa
m

ily
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 

●
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
p
u

t 
o

f 

w
o

rk
 f
ro

m
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
to

 s
o

c
ia

l 

c
a

re
 p

la
n
n

in
g

 t
o

 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

c
y
, 
w

it
h
 a

 c
le

a
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 l
e
g

a
l 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
n

d
 p

re
-p

ro
c
e

e
d
in

g
s
 w

o
rk

 

(E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
, 

C
IN

, 

C
P

, 
L
A

C
 o

r 
C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 

P
a

th
w

a
y
).

 

●
A

ll 
C

a
s
e
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
ta

in
 

u
p

 t
o

 d
a
te

 c
h

ro
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
. 

1
0

 

 

 

Page 42



●
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 t
o

 b
e

 o
n

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
u

n
c
h
 

o
f 
c
h

ro
n
o

lo
g
ie

s
. 

1
0
.0

0
0
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h

 S
N

. 

●
S

u
p
e

rv
is

io
n

 A
u

d
it
 

a
n
d
 S

ta
ff

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 

in
d

ic
a

te
 h

ig
h
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

u
p
e

rv
is

io
n
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
ts

 

b
e
n
e

fi
t.
 

 

●
A

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

Q
A

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 a

ll 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
. 

  

3
.2

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 

s
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e

r 
 

C
h
ild

 i
n
 

N
e

e
d

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

O
n

- 

g
o

in

g
 

●
A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 h

a
v
e
 a

 P
A

D
A

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 s
e

t.
 

 

●
B

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
5

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n

 &
 Y

o
u

n
g

 

P
e
o
p

le
s
 t

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 

a
 P

A
D

A
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 

e
x
p
e

c
te

d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 

b
y
 r

o
le

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

th
is

 a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 
 

●
P

A
D

A
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 r
o

lle
d
 

o
u

t 
to

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
. 

 C
h
e
c
k
s
 a

re
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

P
A

D
A

’s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 s

ig
n
e

d
 

o
ff
. 
 

3
.3

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 o

ff
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e

r 
 

C
h
ild

 i
n
 

N
e

e
d

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

O
n

- 

g
o

in

g
 

●
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 

a
n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 a

re
 

c
le

a
r 

a
b
o

u
t 

th
e

 a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n

 o
ff

e
r 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 t
o

 

c
h
ild

re
n

 &
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 

c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
. 

  

●
%

fa
m

ili
e

s
 n

o
 

lo
n

g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 n

o
t 

re
-r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 

to
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

 f
o

r 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

●
T

A
F

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 

●
P

ro
to

c
o
l 
o
u

tl
in

in
g
 i
n
te

rf
a

c
e

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 E
a

rl
y
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
g
re

e
d
. 

●
T

A
F

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 

m
o

re
 f

re
q
u

e
n

tl
y
 .

 1
1

 

 

 

Page 43



           ●
S

e
rv

ic
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

o
u

tl
in

in
g
 l
e
n

g
th

 a
n

d
 t
y
p
e

 

o
f 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

is
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 s

ta
ff
 

u
ti
lis

e
d
 m

o
re

 

fr
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
. 

 S
te

p
 -

u
p
 a

n
d

 S
te

p
 

D
o

w
n
 d

a
ta

 i
n
d

ic
a
te

s
: 

●
C

IN
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 

6
 m

o
n
th

 

●
C

P
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 

9
 -

1
2

 m
o
n

th
s
 i
n
 

le
n

g
th

  

●
P

re
-p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g

s
 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 1

2
-1

4
 

w
e
e

k
s
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 

●
A

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 

S
te

p
 d

o
w

n
 p

o
s
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o
n

. 

●
%

fa
m

ili
e

s
 n

o
 

lo
n

g
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
 a

 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 n

o
t 

re
-r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 

to
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

 f
o

r 
6

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

●
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

c
o

m
p
la

in
ts

. 
 

 

●
R

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 i
n

to
 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 f

o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

in
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
. 

 

●
R

e
-r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
ra

te
s
 a

re
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
. 

●
S

ta
ff
 ,

 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
  
in

 f
e

e
d
b

a
c
k
 a

n
d
 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

re
 c

le
a

r 
a

b
o

u
t 

o
u

r 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

 

is
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

 f
o
c
u
s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 

ti
m

e
-b

o
u
n

d
. 
 

●
T

ra
in

in
g
 o

n
 

p
re

-p
ro

c
e
e

d
in

g
s
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 

b
e

 r
o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
b

y
 C

o
u

rt
 

T
ra

c
k
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
rs

 i
n

 f
ir
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0

1
5

. 
 

 

1
2

 

 

 

Page 44



3
.4

 
R

e
fr

e
s
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

ff
 

o
n
 D

V
  

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e

r 
 

T
ri
a
g

e
/ 

M
A

S
H

 &
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e

r 
 

C
h
ild

 i
n
 

N
e

e
d

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

S
e

p
t 

2
0

1

5
 

●
M

A
S

H
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 t
o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
D

V
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

ro
le

 

to
 M

A
S

H
 t
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d

 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o

 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

 D
V

 

ri
s
k
. 

 ●
In

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

C
A

A
D

A
-D

A
S

H
 R

is
k
 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

 t
o
o

l 
to

 t
h

e
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 S
W

 

te
a

m
s
. 

●
In

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

a
rn

a
rd

o
’s

 

D
V

 R
is

k
 I
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 

M
a
tr

ix
. 

 

●
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

s
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

D
V

 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 f
ro

m
 C

S
C

. 

●
A

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
rs

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
rs

 o
r 

le
g
a

l 

re
m

e
d
ie

s
. 

●
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

a
u

d
it
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 a
n

 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
q
u

a
lit

y
. 

 

   

●
T

ra
in

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

Q
A

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
 D

V
 t

o
o

ls
 

M
a

rc
h
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
  

3
.5

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 

p
a
re

n
ti
n
g

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e

r 
 

C
h
ild

 i
n
 

N
e

e
d

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
5
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

6
  

●
R

e
c
ru

it
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

a
c
a

n
t 
p

o
s
t 

a
n
d

 m
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 S

W
W

 

(m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h

) 
to

 a
d

d
 

v
a
lu

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

●
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 o
u

tp
u

t 
o
f 

th
e

 

c
u
rr

e
n

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
 

o
f 
a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 

●
W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 o
th

e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

●
S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

 

p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n

d
 o

ff
e
r.

 

●
A

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 b

e
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n
 

-h
o

u
s
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
re

-p
ro

c
e
e

d
in

g
s
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 u

n
le

s
s
 a

 

c
lin

ic
a
l/
m

e
d

ic
a

l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
. 

●
O

n
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 f

u
lly

 s
ta

ff
e
d

 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 

b
e
 r

e
b
a

s
e

d
. 

        

1
3

 

 

 

Page 45



in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

ff
e
r 

w
o
rk

. 

●
S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e

 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 

c
o
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
. 

   

●
A

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 b

e
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h
in

 

n
e

w
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

. 
 

●
A

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 c

a
s
e

 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g

 i
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

p
re

-p
ro

c
e
e

d
in

g
s
 t
o
 

b
e

 o
ff
e

re
d

 t
o
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a

re
 s

ta
ff
. 
 

 

●
P

a
re

n
ti
n
g

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h

in
 6

 

w
e

e
k
s
 u

n
le

s
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h

 

le
g
a

l 
a

n
d

 S
W

 t
e

a
m

s
. 
 

 

3
.6

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 E

D
T

 s
ta

ff
 

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

n
a
p

s
h

o
t 

re
v
ie

w
. 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e

r 
 

C
h
ild

 i
n
 

N
e

e
d

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
5
  

O
n

- 

g
o

in

g
 

●
IC

S
 T

ra
in

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 a
ll 

E
D

T
 s

ta
ff
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g

 a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

  

●
E

D
T

 a
re

 n
o
w

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
rr

e
c
t 
p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 

th
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
m

is
s
in

g
 

c
h
ild

re
n

. 

●
T

R
IA

G
E

 t
e
a

m
 a

re
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d
 a

n
y
 

is
s
u

e
s
 w

e
e
k
ly

 o
f 

in
c
o

rr
e
c
t 

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 

a
n
d
 t

im
e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

. 

  

●
E

D
T

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e
a

m
s
 a

n
d
 

re
m

a
in

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
in

 t
h
e

ir
 

a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
. 

3
.7

 
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

te
ri
m

 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

to
 a

ll 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

te
a
m

 m
a
n

a
g

e
r 

p
o

s
ts

  

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

J
u

ly
 

2
0
1
5
 

D
e
c
 

2
0

1

5
 

●
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 

a
p
p

o
in

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

W
 

te
a
m

s
. 

 

●
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

●
S

ta
b

le
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

g
o
o

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
. 
 

 

1
4

 

 

 

Page 46



W
o

rk
 s

tr
e
a
m

 4
: 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

L
A

C
 &

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 /

 P
ro

c
e
s

s
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a

d
 

A
s
s
t 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

S
ta

rt
 

D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 

D
a
te

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 -

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

M
e
a

s
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 –

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

 a
n

d
 

K
e
y

 T
a
rg

e
ts

 

4
.1

 
A

ll 
L
A

C
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
a
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 L

A
C

 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 

m
e

t.
 

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 g
o

o
d
 

p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

w
it
h
in

 1
2
-1

8
 m

o
n

th
s
 

(r
e

tu
rn

 h
o

m
e
, 
lo

n
g

 

te
rm

 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
, 

a
d

o
p
ti
o
n

, 
S

G
O

 

(S
p

e
c
ia

l 

G
u

a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 

O
rd

e
rs

),
 c

o
n

n
e

c
te

d
 

p
e

rs
o

n
s
).

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
L

A
C

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

O
n

- 

g
o

in
g

 

In
te

ri
m

 r
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

e
a
m

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

g
ra

d
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1

4
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
 A

ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

o
s
ts

 a
re

 f
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 

c
a

s
e

lo
a

d
s
 a

re
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 (
1

4
 f
o

r 
C

iC
 

te
a

m
s
).

 

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e

t 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 v

is
it
in

g
  
a
n

d
 P

L
O

 

ti
m

e
 s

c
a

le
s
. 

W
e

e
k
ly

 d
a

ta
 s

e
t 

- 

1
0

0
%

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

A
C

 

 1
0

0
%

 o
f 

L
A

C
 v

is
it
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
. 

 L
o

w
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 m

is
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

c
a

re
 <

5
 

  

W
e
e

k
ly

 d
a

ta
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 o
n

 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 c

a
s
e
s
. 

M
o
n

th
ly

 m
e
e

ti
n
g
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e

 C
a

s
e

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
 

4
.2

 
A

v
e

ra
g
e

 c
a

s
e

lo
a

d
s
 

re
m

a
in

 w
it
h
in

 1
4
 -

1
6
 

c
a
s
e

s
 p

e
r 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
L

A
C

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

O
n
- 

g
o

in
g

 

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 a
re

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

a
n

a
g

e
a

b
le

 

c
a

s
e

lo
a

d
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 w
o
rk

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
s
e

s
 i
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 i
n

 a
 t

im
e
ly

 

m
a
n
n

e
r.

 

W
e

e
k
ly

 d
a

ta
 s

e
t:

 

 A
v
e
ra

g
e
 c

a
s
e

lo
a

d
 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 C
a

re
 

T
e

a
m

s
 =

 1
4

 

 

1
5

 

 

 

Page 47



M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 =

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 

c
a

s
e

lo
a

d
 o

f 
1
4

 c
h

ild
re

n
  

 
A

ll 
L
A

C
 c

h
ild

re
n
 o

v
e

r 

th
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
1
6

 y
e

a
rs

 

o
ld

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
L
A

C
 &

 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 

&
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e

o
p

le
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

D
e

c
 

2
0

1
5
 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
L

A
C

 Y
P

 o
v
e
r 

th
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
1
6

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

. 
A

ll
 

c
a

re
 l
e
a

v
e

rs
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 P
a
th

w
a
y
 P

la
n

 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 =

 8
5

%
 c

a
re

 

le
a
v
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 a
 P

a
th

w
a

y
 P

la
n
 

D
a
ta

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
- 

 

 1
0

0
%

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 =

 a
ll 

1
6

 p
lu

s
 o

p
e
n

 c
a
s
e
s
 

 1
0

0
%

 p
a

th
w

a
y
 p

la
n

s
 =

 

A
ll 

c
a
re

 l
e

a
v
e
rs

 

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 L

A
C

 

im
p
ro

v
e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
e

ir
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
 

 

4
.3

 
E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
h

ild
 o

r 

y
o
u

n
g

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

c
a
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g

  
fo

r 

L
A

C
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
 

le
a

v
e

rs
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
L

A
C

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

O
n
- 

g
o

in
g

 

A
ll 

L
A

C
 c

h
ild

re
n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

o
ff

e
re

d
 a

n
 a

d
v
o

c
a

te
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

in
d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
to

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 -
 

s
e

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

. 

 C
a
s
e

 a
u

d
it
s
 w

ill
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 c
h

ild
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 c

a
s
e
 

re
c
o
rd

in
g

. 

 T
e

a
m

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 L

A
C

 

im
p
ro

v
e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 t
h

e
ir
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

d
a

ta
: 

 M
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 f
o

r 
a

u
d

it
e

d
 

c
a

s
e

s
: 

●
M

a
rc

h
 1

5
 -

 3
5
%

 

●
S

e
p
t 

1
5
 -

 5
0

%
 

●
M

a
rc

h
 1

6
 -

 8
0
%

 

 

1
6

 

 

 

Page 48



A
ll 

S
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 

th
a

t 
th

e
 c

h
ild

's
 v

o
ic

e
 i
s
 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
a
re

/P
a
th

w
a

y
 

p
la

n
 b

y
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 r
e

c
o
rd

in
g

s
  

4
.4

 
E

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

is
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

a
n
d

 

m
o

re
 t

im
e

ly
 

d
e

c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
L

A
C

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

J
u
ly

 

2
0

1
5
 

A
ll 

C
a
re

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

a
u

d
it
e
d
 b

y
 S

M
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
s
e

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 m

a
n
a

g
e

r.
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 f

u
ll 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h
 

th
e

 c
a

s
e

 a
u

d
it
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

T
h

e
 P

u
b

lic
 L

a
w

 O
u

tl
in

e
 (

P
L

O
) 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

im
p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 

re
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 5
7
 t

o
 3

4
 w

e
e
k
s
 

d
u

ra
ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

fi
n

a
l 
o
rd

e
r.

 

C
o
u

rt
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

L
A

C
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
: 

 T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g
e
 o

f 
P

L
O

 

c
a

s
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

=
 2

6
 w

e
e
k
s
 

 1
0

0
%

 o
f 

L
A

C
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

c
o

m
p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
 

 M
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 f
o

r 
a

u
d

it
e

d
 

c
a

s
e

s
: 

●
M

a
rc

h
 1

5
 -

 3
5
%

 

●
S

e
p
t 

1
5
 -

 5
0

%
 

●
M

a
rc

h
 1

6
 -

 8
0
%

 

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
c
a

re
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 

ro
b
u

s
t 

to
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 g
o
o

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
o

r 
L

A
C

 c
h
ild

re
n

 

4
.5

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

p
la

c
e

m
e
n
t 

o
u

tp
u

ts
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 g
o
o

d
 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
L

A
C

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
L
A

C
 &

 

V
H

T
 

J
a

n
 

2
0
1

5
 

D
e

c
 

2
0

1
5
 

R
e
g
u

la
r 

m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 s

tr
o
n

g
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 

th
e

 C
iC

 t
e
a

m
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 v
ir
tu

a
l 

s
c
h
o

o
l.
 

 W
o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rw
a
y
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 e
P

E
P

s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

a
tt

e
n
d

a
n

c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n
g

. 

 

U
p
d

a
te

s
 f

ro
m

 D
a
ta

 

a
n

d
 w

e
e
k
ly

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 

m
e
e

ti
n

g
s
; 

 1
0

0
%

 e
P

E
P

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

y
e
a
r 

3
 a

n
d

 

a
b

o
v
e
 L

A
C

. 

 

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

L
A

C
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

m
e
e

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
ir
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 a

re
 o

ff
e

re
d

 1
-2

-1
 

tu
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

ir
 p

u
p
il 

p
re

m
iu

m
 

1
7

 

 

 

Page 49



R
e
g
u

la
r 

m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
e

ti
n
g

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 t

o
 t
ra

c
k
 

a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
h

e
a

lt
h
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
 R

e
s
id

u
a

l 
a
c
ti
o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 O
fs

te
d

 

Im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n
: 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
d
e

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

tr
a

c
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

 

s
y
s
te

m
 w

it
h

in
 e

P
E

P
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 
a
ll 

a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 d

a
ta

 

is
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 o
n

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 S

W
s
, 

D
T

s
, 

V
S

C
s
 a

n
d
 F

C
s
. 

 D
a
te

 f
o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 s

e
t 

fo
r 

A
p

ri
l,
 2

0
1

5
. 

 R
e
s
id

u
a

l 
a
c
ti
o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 O
fs

te
d

 

Im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n
: 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 

e
P

E
P

 s
o

 t
h
a

t 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s
 

a
g

re
e
d
 c

a
n

 b
e

 S
M

A
R

T
 b

y
 1

3
th
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
5

. 

 R
e
s
id

u
a

l 
a
c
ti
o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 O
fs

te
d

 

Im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n
: 

M
o
d
e

l 
o

f 
o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

P
P

P
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 n

o
t 

im
p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 
 2

0
1

4
-2

0
1

5
 

P
P

P
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
o
lv

e
d
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
, 

s
o
m

e
 h

a
v
in

g
 

b
e

e
n

 u
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

9
0

%
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 

L
A

C
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
. 

1
8

 

 

 

Page 50



1
:1

 t
u
it
io

n
, 

B
o
o

k
 T

ru
s
t 
to

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 l
it
e
ra

c
y
 a

n
d

 

in
c
e
n

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g

e
 L

A
C

. 

   

4
.6

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 

p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

t 

p
la

c
e

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

fo
r 

L
A

C
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a
g

e

r 
- 

L
A

C
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

J
u
ly

 

2
0

1
5
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
rt

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rw
a
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

c
o
u

rt
 

p
ro

c
e

e
d

in
g
s
 a

re
 t
ra

c
k
e
d

 a
n

d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

2
6
 w

e
e
k
 

ti
m

e
 s

c
a

le
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

c
y
 

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
a

ll 

C
h
ild

 P
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
re

p
o
rt

s
 

(P
e
rm

a
n
e

n
c
y
 P

la
n

s
) 

T
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g
e
 o

f 
P

L
O

 

c
a

s
e

s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

=
 2

6
 w

e
e
k
s
. 

 P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

w
a
it
in

g
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ily
 

fi
n

d
in

g
 9

 m
o
n

th
s
 o

f 

e
n

tr
y
 i
n

to
 c

a
re

 =
 <

3
0

%
 

P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

w
a
it
in

g
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ily
 

fi
n

d
in

g
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 

e
n

tr
y
 i
n

to
 c

a
re

 =
 <

1
0

%
  

 

2
6

 w
e
e
k
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 i
n

 c
o

u
rt

- 

m
o
n

th
ly

 m
e
e

ti
n
g

s
 

 

1
9

 

 

 

Page 51



W
o

rk
 s

tr
e
a

m
 5

: 
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 &

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 

A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 P

ro
c

e
s
s

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 

R
e
f 

A
c
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a

d
 

A
s
s
t 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

S
ta

rt
 

D
a
te

 

E
n

d
 

D
a

t

e
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 -

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 

M
e

a
s

u
re

s
 a

n
d

 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
s

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 –
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

a
n

d
 K

e
y
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 

5
.1

 
A

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 

o
f 

a
ll 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o

m
in

g
 i
n

to
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

J
a
n
 

1
5

 

J
u
ly

 

1
5

 

●
2
9

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 C
o
ra

m
  

●
H

C
L
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 K

in
s
h
ip

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
o
r 

in
 p

o
s
t 

●
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

e
m

b
e
d

d
e

d
 i
n

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

  

 

 

●
O

u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 

A
d

o
p

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 P

a
n

e
l 

fo
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 

w
it
h
in

 6
 m

o
n

th
s
 

C
o
ra

m
 p

ro
je

c
t 

●
N

e
w

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 

A
d

o
p

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 P

a
n

e
l 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
  

●
IC

S
/P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
te

lli
g
e

n
c
e
 T

e
a

m
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

●
D

e
liv

e
r 

to
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
 

a
d
o

p
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

fo
s
te

ri
n
g

 

p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
c
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

L
A

C
 

●
W

e
e
k
ly

 t
a

rg
e
t 

to
 

a
llo

c
a

te
 a

ll 
c
a

re
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

  

●
S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

g
o

o
d
 

q
u
a

lit
y
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 

(r
e

tu
rn

 h
o

m
e
, 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
, 

a
d
o

p
ti
o
n

, 
S

G
O

, 

c
o
n

n
e

c
te

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

s
) 

fo
r 

L
A

C
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 

H
ill

in
g

d
o
n

. 

●
T

im
e
ly

 p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
c
y
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d
 

fo
r 

L
A

C
 

2
0

 

 

 

Page 52



s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q
u
ir
e

m
e
n
ts

  

●
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 

m
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 b
y
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 

s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
 

 

●
T

im
e
 o

f 
c
o

n
v
e
rs

io
n

 

fr
o
m

 S
ta

g
e
 1

 t
o

 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
 

●
T

im
e
 o

f 
c
o

n
v
e
rs

io
n

 

fr
o
m

 S
ta

g
e
 2

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 

a
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
 

●
T

im
e
 o

f 
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
 

●
T

im
e
 f

ro
m

 

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
O

rd
e
r 

to
 

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n

 P
la

c
e

m
e
n

t 
 

●
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 o

f 
S

G
O

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
  

●
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 o

f 

C
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
 P

e
rs

o
n
’s

 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
  

5
.2

 
A

d
a

p
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
  

to
 

d
e

liv
e
r 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

fr
o

m
 t
h
e

 i
n
it
ia

l 
p

ro
je

c
t,

 t
o
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 a
t 
k
e
y
 

p
o

in
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 A

d
o

p
ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
t 
a

 ‘
b

e
s
t 

v
a

lu
e

’ 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

L
A

C
 m

o
d
e

l 

  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

F
e
b

 

1
5

 

6
 

m
o

n

th
s
 

fr
o
m

 

s
ta

rt
 

●
T

e
a

m
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

p
u

t 
e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 

m
o
d

e
ls

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
  

●
A

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

p
a

s
t 
a

n
d
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 e
n
te

ri
n

g
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 

●
P

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w

 t
e
a

m
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 r

a
ti
o
 a

n
d

 

●
Q

u
a
lit

y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 

fr
a

m
e

w
o
rk

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
g
o

o
d
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n
 

a
ll 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

●
IC

S
/P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
te

lli
g
e

n
c
e
 T

e
a

m
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 

●
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

L
A

C
 i
n

 H
ill

in
g
d

o
n

  

●
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 

m
e

a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a

d
o

p
ti
o
n
 

s
c
o

re
 c

a
rd

 

●
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 o

f 
L

A
C

 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
c
y
 

2
1

 

 

 

Page 53



a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 c

o
s
t 
to

 m
e
e

t 

d
e

m
a
n

d
  

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q
u
ir
e

m
e
n
ts

  

●
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 

m
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 b
y
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 

s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
 
 

  

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

  

●
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

g
o
o

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 L

B
 

H
ill

in
g

d
o
n

 f
o

s
te

r 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 

●
In

c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

L
A

C
 p

la
c
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 

2
0
 m

ile
 r

a
d

iu
s
 

●
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 o

f 
S

G
O

 

a
n
d

 C
o
n

n
e
c
te

d
 

P
e
rs

o
n

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

5
.3

 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
s
tr

o
n

g
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

a
n
d

 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 

p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

c
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
o

r 

L
A

C
 i
n

 H
ill

in
g

d
o

n
 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

F
e
b

 

1
5

 

J
u
ly

 

1
5

 

●
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
o
n
 

g
o

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

e
m

b
e
d

d
e

d
 i
n

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

 

●
A

g
re

e
d

 m
o
n
th

ly
 P

I 
d

a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 

m
a
n

u
a

lly
 c

o
lla

te
d

 a
n

d
 

re
p
o

rt
e

d
 
 

●
P

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
IC

S
 /
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 I
n
te

lli
g
e

n
c
e

 

T
e

a
m

 d
a
ta

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
  

 

●
IC

S
/P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
te

lli
g
e

n
c
e
 T

e
a

m
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q
u
ir
e

m
e
n
ts

  

●
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 

m
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 b
y
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 

s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
 
 

 

●
Im

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

L
A

C
 i
n

 H
ill

in
g
d

o
n

 

●
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t
h

e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 

m
e

a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a

d
o

p
ti
o
n
 

s
c
o

re
 c

a
rd

 

●
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 o

f 
L

A
C

 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
c
y
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

  

2
2

 

 

 

Page 54



 

5
.4

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 &

 F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 P

a
n

e
l 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

&
 P

a
n
e
l 

A
d
v
is

o
r 

M
a

r 

1
5

 

S
e
p

 

1
5

 

●
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

in
te

ri
m

 P
a
n

e
l 

A
d

v
is

o
r 

●
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
d

m
in

 

c
o

o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
  

●
J
o

in
t 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h

 A
d

o
p
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

F
o

s
te

ri
n
g
 P

a
n

e
l 
C

h
a

ir
 t

o
 

o
v
e
rs

e
e
 a

n
d

 s
c
ru

ti
n

is
e
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 

●
J
o

in
t 

w
o
rk

 b
e

tw
e

e
n
 t
h

e
 

P
a

n
e

l 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

a
n
d

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

rt
 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
to

 o
v
e

rs
e
e

 t
im

e
ly

 

c
a

s
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 

 

  

●
Q

u
a
lit

y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 o
f 

c
a

s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
a

p
e

rw
o
rk

 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 

A
d

o
p

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 P

a
n

e
l 

●
F

e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 f

o
rm

s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 

A
d

o
p

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 P

a
n

e
l 

a
ft

e
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

a
n
e

l 
 

●
B

i 
m

o
n
th

ly
 

F
e

e
d

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 

A
d

o
p

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 C

h
a

ir
  

●
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
re

rs
/a

d
a
p

to
rs

 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
  

●
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o
f 

c
a
re

rs
 i
n

 

lin
e
 w

it
h

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

 

●
 R

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
a

s
e

s
 

re
q

u
ir
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 d
u

e
 t

o
 

o
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

r 
q
u
a

lit
y
  

 

5
.5

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 f
in

d
in

g
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

M
a

r 

1
5

 

S
e
p

 

1
5

 

●
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

2
 i
n

te
ri
m

 H
C

L
 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 
 

●
P

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w

 t
e
a

m
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 r

a
ti
o
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 c

o
s
t 
to

 m
e
e

t 

d
e

m
a
n

d
 

●
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f

a
m

ily
 f
in

d
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
  

p
e

rm
a
n

e
n

c
y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
  

●
L

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 

c
h
ild

re
n

 w
a
it
 f
o
r 

p
e
rm

a
n

e
n
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
 

●
IC

S
/P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
te

lli
g
e

n
c
e
 T

e
a

m
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

  

●
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 

m
o

n
th

ly
 d

a
ta

 b
y
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 

s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
 
 

●
R

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 

a
n
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 o

f 

c
h
ild

re
n

 w
a

it
in

g
 f
o
r 

p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

c
a

re
rs

  

●
T

im
e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 p

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
L

A
C

  

●
R

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
s
  

 

2
3

 

 

 

Page 55



 

5
.6

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o

f 
L
B

H
 f

o
s
te

r 

c
a

re
rs

 t
o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e
 

n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 o

f 

L
A

C
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

S
ta

r 

o
f 

n
e

w
 

te
a

m
 

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

  

6
 

m
o

n

th
s
 

fr
o
m

 

s
ta

rt
 

●
T

e
a

m
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

p
u

t 
e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 

m
o
d

e
ls

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
  

●
A

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

p
a

s
t 
a

n
d
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 e
n
te

ri
n

g
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 

●
P

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w

 t
e
a

m
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 r

a
ti
o
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 c

o
s
t 
to

 m
e
e

t 

d
e

m
a
n

d
 

●
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

re
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

s
te

r 

c
a

re
rs

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 

L
A

C
/L

A
C

 w
it
h
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 n

e
e

d
s
  

 

 

●
P

e
rc

e
n

t 
o

f 
L
A

C
 w

it
h

 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e
d

s
 

p
la

c
e

d
 w

it
h

 L
B

H
- 

c
a
re

rs
 2

0
 m

ile
 r

a
d
iu

s
 

●
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 o

f 

u
n
p

la
n
n

e
d
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
m

o
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

L
A

C
 
 

  

2
4

 

 

 

Page 56



W
o

rk
 s

tr
e
a
m

 6
: 

E
m

b
e
d

d
in

g
 n

e
w

 w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 /
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

R
e

f 
A

c
ti

o
n

 
L

e
a
d

 

A
s

s
t 

 
D

ir
e
c

to
r 

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

S
ta

rt
 

D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 

D
a

t

e
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 -
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

M
e
a

s
u

re
s

 a
n

d
 

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 –

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

 a
n

d
 

K
e
y

 T
a
rg

e
ts

 

6
.1

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e

tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

y
 

a
lig

n
in

g
 t
h
e

 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 m

o
d
e
l 

w
it
h
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

d
e
m

a
n
d

  

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

S
e
p

t 

2
0
1

5
 

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

 t
h
e
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 p

a
th

w
a
y
. 

 

E
x
tr

a
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

e
t 

b
y
 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 

‘m
a
n

a
g

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
’ 
fo

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

s
. 

 R
e

g
u

la
r 

w
e
e

k
ly

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

m
o

n
it
o
ri
n

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

M
o
n

it
o

r 
e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 

o
f 
th

e
 ‘
m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
’ 
m

o
d
e

l.
 

 B
a

s
e

lin
e

 

●
R

a
te

 o
f 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 p
e

r 

1
0
,0

0
1
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
Y

P
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
 

●
 R

a
te

 o
f 

s
e
c
ti
o

n
 4

7
 

e
n
q
u

ir
ie

s
 p

e
r 

1
1
0
,0

0
0

 o
f 

th
e

 

C
Y

P
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
 

●
%

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 

le
a

d
in

g
 t
o

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

(a
s
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

c
h

ild
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 a

 

c
h

ild
 i
n
 n

e
e

d
) 

 

2
5

 

 

 

Page 57



●
1

0
0
%

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

a
s
e

s
 

●
1

0
0
%

 m
e

e
t 
a

ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
e
a

s
u

re
s
 f
o

r 
L
A

C
, 

C
P

 a
n
d

 C
iN

 c
a

s
e

s
 

6
.2

 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 b
y
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d
s
 a

re
 

s
ta

b
le

 a
n
d

 

b
a
la

n
c
e

d
 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

O
n

- 

g
o
in g
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 a

d
d

e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 ‘
m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
’ 

m
o

d
e

ls
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
e
d

 i
n
te

ri
m

 

s
ta

ff
in

g
. 

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e
 

le
d

 t
o
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
a
ll 

b
a
c
k
lo

g
 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

s
 o

p
e

 w
it
h
o

u
t 
a

 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h

a
n

 6
 w

e
e
k
s
. 

 C
a

s
e

lo
a

d
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
v
e

ra
g
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 (
1

7
) 

a
n
d

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

w
e

e
k
ly

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 c

a
s
e

lo
a

d
 f
o
r 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 =
 1

8
 

 N
e
w

ly
 q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 =
 1

2
 

 

6
.3

 
E

n
s
u

re
 g

o
o
d

 

m
a

n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 

s
u

p
p
o
rt

 o
f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 

b
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n

g
 a

 

fl
a

tt
e

r 
te

a
m

 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

M
a

y
 

2
0

1
5
 

J
u
n

e
 

2
0
1

5
 

T
o

 d
e
liv

e
r 

c
le

a
re

r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 b

y
 e

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

a
m

 

m
a
n
a

g
e
rs

 w
it
h

 s
m

a
ll 

(m
a
x
im

u
m

 6
) 

te
a
m

s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
e
rs

. 
 

M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

th
ro

u
g
h

 s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 

 

2
6

 

 

 

Page 58



m
a

n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

e
a
d
e

r 

e
n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
. 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 

re
c
e

iv
e

 s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

s
 

o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 

 P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 

ju
d
g

e
d

 g
o

o
d

 o
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

 

- 
3

5
%

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

- 
5

0
%

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
2
0

1
5

 

 

6
.4

 
In

v
e

s
t 
in

 e
x
p
e

rt
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

ro
le

s
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 

M
u

n
ro

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 t
o
 

b
u
ild

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

c
a

p
a
b
ili

ty
 a

t 
th

e
 

p
o
in

t 
o
f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

M
a
y
 

2
0
1

5
  

M
a

r 

2
0
1

6
 

In
tr

o
d
u

c
e

 n
e

w
 a

d
v
a
n

c
e

d
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e
r 

ro
le

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e

a
m

s
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
. 

 T
h
is

 f
o

rm
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

le
a

d
e

r 
e

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

Im
p
ro

v
e

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 

re
c
e

iv
e

 s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

s
 

o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
a
s
is

. 

 P
e

rc
e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 

ju
d
g

e
d

 g
o

o
d

 o
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

 

- 
3

5
%

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

- 
5

0
%

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r 
2
0

1
5

 

 

6
.5

 
In

v
e

s
t 
in

 s
ta

ff
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d

 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
a
fe

g
u
a

rd

in
g
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1

6
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 T

ra
in

in
g

 

a
n
d

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 

u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 

1
0

0
%

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 h
a

v
e
 I

D
P

s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

 

2
7

 

 

 

Page 59



c
le

a
re

r 
a

lig
n
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

re
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

h
a
v
e
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g

 p
la

n
s
 

(I
D

P
) 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

it
h

in
  

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 

jo
b
. 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 

c
o

m
p
le

te
d

 t
h
e

ir
 P

A
D

A
 

6
.6

 
A

ll 
c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

m
a

d
e
 w

it
h

 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y
, 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 

c
a

re
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 

re
g
u

la
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 m

a
n

a
g
e
rs

 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

&
 A

D
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
a
fe

g
u
a

rd

in
g
 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1

5
 

O
n

- 

g
o
in g
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

w
h
o

le
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n
 e

v
e

n
ts

 

h
e
ld

 t
o

 o
u

tl
in

e
 k

e
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 

a
n
d

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

 A
ll 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 h

o
ld

 

re
g

u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 e
x
p
la

in
 i
n

 

d
e
ta

il 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
a
c
ti
o
n

. 

 A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 s

ta
ff

 s
u
rv

e
y
. 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 w

h
o
le

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

v
e
n

ts
 h

e
ld

 

 R
e
g

u
la

r 
a

tt
e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
m

e
e

ti
n
g

s
 

 5
0

%
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 r

a
te

 t
o

 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 f

ro
m

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

  
 

2
8

 

 

 

Page 60



 W
o

rk
 s

tr
e
a
m

 7
: 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 Q

u
a
li
ty

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 /

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

R
e

f 
A

c
ti

o
n
 

L
e

a
d

 

A
D

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

S
ta

rt
 

D
a

te
 

E
n

d
 

D
a

te
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 -
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 M
e

a
s
u

re
s
 

a
n

d
 M

il
e

s
to

n
e

s
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

 –
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 a
n

d
 K

e
y
 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 

7
.1

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 

Q
u
a

lit
y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 

F
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

 a
n

d
 A

u
d

it
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 e

m
b
e

d
 

'g
o
o

d
' s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

f 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

  

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd

in
g
 

A
p

r 

2
0
1
5
 

S
e

p
 

2
0

1
5
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

s
ig

n
e
d

 o
ff
 a

n
d

 l
a

u
n
c
h
e

d
 1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5
 

 A
u

d
it
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 l
a

u
n

c
h
e

d
 1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5

. 

  

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 

ju
d

g
e

d
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
b
e

tt
e

r 
 

- 
3
5

%
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5
 

- 
5
0

%
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

5
 

- 
8
0

%
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

 M
o

n
th

ly
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 

w
ill

 d
ri
v
e

 

im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
in

g
 c

le
a

r 

a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
s
. 

'G
o

o
d

' s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

  

7
.2

 
L

a
u

n
c
h
 n

e
w

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd

in
g
 

A
p

r 

2
0
1
5
 

J
u

n
e

 

2
0

1
5
 

N
e

w
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f
o
r:

 

●
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
a
n

d
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

●
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
s
 

●
V

is
it
s
 t

o
 C

h
ild

re
n

 

●
C

a
re

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 

ju
d

g
e

d
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
b
e

tt
e

r 
 

- 
3
5

%
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
5
 

- 
5
0

%
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

5
 

- 
8
0

%
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 

'G
o

o
d

' s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

2
9

 

 

 

Page 61



s
ig

n
e
d

 o
ff
 a

n
d

 l
a

u
n
c
h
e

d
 b

y
 1

5
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
5

. 

 O
n

g
o

in
g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

B
it
e
 

s
iz

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
 o

n
 

n
e

w
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

c
o

m
m

e
n
c
in

g
 m

id
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
5
 

d
e

liv
e
re

d
 b

y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 

M
e

n
to

r 
 

 A
u

d
it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
 c

a
s
e

w
o

rk
. 

  

7
.3

 
L

a
u

n
c
h
 n

e
w

 A
u

d
it
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd

in
g
 

A
p

r 

2
0
1
5
 

O
c
t 

2
0

1
5
 

A
ll 

m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 

s
in

g
le

 a
g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 c

a
s
e

 f
ile

 a
u

d
it
 t

o
o

l.
 

 E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 a
u

d
it
 t
o

o
l 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

d
a

ta
 o

n
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 o

n
 a

 

m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 t
o

 t
ra

c
k
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

, 
c
h

ro
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
, 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t/
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
, 

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
5

 

1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 f
o

r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
a
s
e
 

fi
le

 a
u

d
it
s
 

 F
ro

m
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

5
 1

0
0

%
 

c
a
s
e
 f

ile
 a

u
d

it
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 u

s
in

g
 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 a
u
d

it
 t
o

o
l 

 

A
n

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 m
a

n
a
g
e

rs
 t

o
 e

m
b
e

d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 a

u
d

it
 i
n
to

 d
a

ily
 

s
u

p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

in
 a

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 w

a
y
. 

 

3
0

 

 

 

Page 62



s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 

th
e

 c
h

ild
. 

 B
i-
m

o
n

th
ly

 t
h

e
m

a
ti
c
 a

u
d

it
s
 

c
o

m
p
le

te
d

 u
s
in

g
 b

e
s
p
o

k
e
 a

u
d

it
 

m
e

th
o
d

o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 

a
u

d
it
 t

o
o

l.
 

 R
e

s
id

u
a
l 
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 O
fs

te
d

 

Im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n

: 

●
M

ile
s
to

n
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
u
d
it
e
d

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

‘g
o
o

d
’ 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 s

e
t 
a

t 

9
0

%
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1
4

 a
n

d
 1

0
0

%
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
. 
M

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 

re
v
is

e
d

 a
s
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

5
: 

○
M

a
rc

h
 1

5
 -

 3
5
%

 

○
S

e
p

t 
1
5

 -
 5

0
%

 

○
M

a
rc

h
 1

6
 -

 8
0

 

 

●
M

ile
s
to

n
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
s
 

a
u

d
it
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 

S
M

A
R

T
 a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

d
 r

is
k
 

m
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
(‘
g

ra
d
e

d
 

‘g
o
o

d
’)
 s

e
t 
a

t 
6

0
%

 O
c
t 

1
4
, 

7
5

%
 M

a
rc

h
 1

5
 a

n
d

 1
0

0
%

 

S
e

p
t 
1

5
. 
M

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 

re
v
is

e
d

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 

B
y
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

6
 1

0
0

%
 

o
f 

th
e
m

e
s
 a

u
d
it
s
 a

re
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 

  M
o

n
it
o
re

d
 a

t 
m

o
n

th
ly

 

Q
u
a

lit
y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 

m
e

e
ti
n
g
s
 

3
1

 

 

 

Page 63



 ●
T

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
S

M
A

R
T

 

p
la

n
s
 s

c
h
e

d
u

le
d
 f

o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1

4
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ic

k
e

d
 u

p
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 

a
u

d
it
 f

o
rm

 e
v
e

ry
 m

o
n
th

 

 ●
T

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 a

u
d
it
 

s
c
h
e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

1
4

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
 w

it
h

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 

a
u

d
it
 o

f 
s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 e

v
e
ry

 

m
o
n
th

 (
e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 a

u
d

it
 

fo
rm

) 
a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 

s
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 (

J
u
ly

 

2
0

1
5

) 

 

7
.4

 
E

n
s
u
re

 a
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
h

a
t 

q
u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
u

re
s
 

c
o
n

s
is

te
n

tl
y
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 

g
o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a

lle
n
g

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

a
re

a
s
 t

h
a
t 

re
q

u
ir
e

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd

in
g
 

A
p

r 

2
0
1
5
 

S
e

p
 

2
0

1
5
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n

t 
D

is
p

u
te

 R
e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

it
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n

t 
m

id
p
o
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
 p

la
n
s
. 

D
is

p
u

te
 R

e
s
o

lu
ti
o
n

 

T
ra

c
k
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

t 

m
o

n
th

ly
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
  

 1
0

0
%

 L
o

o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

m
id

-p
o
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
 b

y
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1

5
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

L
o

o
k
e

d
 

A
ft
e

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

. 

3
2

 

 

 

Page 64



7
.5

 
L

a
u

n
c
h
 C

S
E

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d

 M
is

s
in

g
 P

e
rs

o
n

 

a
n
d

 R
u
n
a

w
a
y
 P

ro
to

c
o
l 
 

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd

in
g
 

J
a

n
 

2
0
1
5
 

S
e

p
 

2
0

1
5
 

L
a

u
n

c
h

 C
S

E
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 

M
is

s
in

g
 P

e
rs

o
n

 a
n

d
 R

u
n
a

w
a

y
 

P
ro

to
c
o

l 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

5
. 
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 
C

S
E

 

d
a

ta
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

m
e

a
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 

c
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 

tr
e
n

d
s
 

 1
0

0
%

 o
f 

C
S

E
 c

a
s
e

s
 

tr
a
c
k
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
h
a

v
e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 r

is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

p
la

n
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d

 b
y
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

5
. 

A
 C

S
E

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
h

a
t 
w

ill
 e

n
a
b

le
 

a
ll 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 w

h
e
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 

C
S

E
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
. 

7
.6

 
C

o
lla

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 

o
f 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 g
o

o
d

 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 

to
 i
n

fo
rm

 f
u

tu
re

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd

in
g
 

S
e

p
 

2
0
1
5
 

O
c
t 

2
0

1
5
 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 (
s
ix

 m
o

n
th

ly
) 

- 

m
a

k
in

g
 t
h
e

 l
in

k
 w

it
h
 T

e
a

m
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

Im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t.
 

A
ll 

te
a

m
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 T

e
a

m
 w

ill
 

ru
n

 a
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
d
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 

a
n

d
 d

a
ta

 e
v
e

ry
 s

ix
 

m
o

n
th

s
. 

A
 r

o
b
u

s
t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 f
o
r 

tu
rn

in
g
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
to

 

re
fl
e
c
ti
o

n
, 
p

la
n
n
e

d
 a

c
ti
o
n

, 

b
e

tt
e
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

. 

7
.7

 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

h
ild

's
 

jo
u

rn
e

y
 i
t 

is
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 a

re
 

c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 a
ll 

A
D

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd

in
g
 

J
a

n
 

2
0
1
5
 

S
e

p
 

2
0

1
5
 

R
e

-l
a
u

n
c
h

 V
ie

w
p

o
in

t 

 T
ra

c
k
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
's

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o
n

 i
n

 L
A

C
 

V
ie

w
p

o
in

t 
w

ill
 s

e
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g

 a
n

d
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
in

g
 c

h
ild

's
 

v
ie

w
s
 

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 

c
h

ild
's

 v
o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h
e

ir
 

v
ie

w
s
 i
n
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
. 

3
3

 

 

 

Page 65



a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 

m
a

k
in

g
 

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

C
o

n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
. 
 

R
e

s
id

u
a
l 
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 O
fs

te
d

 

Im
p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n

: 

●
M

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
s
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
in

g
 t
h

e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 

th
e
 c

h
ild

 a
s
 ‘
g
o

o
d

’ 
s
e

t 
a

t 

8
0

%
 S

e
p
t 

1
4
, 

9
0

%
 D

e
c
 

1
4

 a
n

d
 1

0
0
%

 M
a
rc

h
 1

5
. 

M
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
  

 A
u

d
it
s
 o

f 
c
a

re
 p

la
n

s
 

a
n

d
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e

 

c
h
ild

's
 v

o
ic

e
 i
n
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
. 

 

M
ile

s
to

n
e
s
: 

6
0

%
 M

a
y
 1

5
 

8
0

%
 J

u
ly

 1
5

 

1
0

0
%

 S
e

p
t 
1

5
 

  
 

3
4

 

 

 

Page 66



Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

QUARTERLY CHILD SOCIAL CARE AUDIT UPDATE 2014/15 

 
Contact Officer: Nikki Cruikshank 

       Telephone: 01895 556708 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
The purpose of this paper is to provide a brief update on audit activity over the last quarter 
and includes the audit programme for 2015/16 (Work stream 7 Service Improvement Plan 
2015/16). 
 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 
 

It is recommended that the Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update provided.  
 

INFORMATION 
 
Background 
 
1 The 'Quality Assurance Practice Guide' was developed in March 2014 in order to 

ensure that CYPS was well placed to address the areas identified by Ofsted as 
requiring improvement and to pursue a journey of continuous improvement with a more 
outcome focused approach to audit activity. The previous audit tool was more focussed 
on tasks and processes, whilst the new audit tool focussed on evidence of impact and 
outcomes. 
 

Monthly Case File Audit Activity 

 

2 As at September 2014 monthly audit compliance across the service was 72%, with 63 

cases out of 88 having been audited. 6% Rated as 'good', 51% 'requires improvement' 

and 43% graded 'inadequate'. 

 

3 Since September 2014 with support from a lead QA Auditor and Senior Managers 

there has been a steady improvement in monthly audit compliance and an increase in 

the number of case rated as 'good' and 'requires improvement' and a decrease in those 

rated 'inadequate'. 

 

4 In December 2014 audit compliance was 96% and for January and February 2015 
audit compliance was 100%. 

 
5 The revised milestone for cases rated as 'good' in the Service Improvement Plan 

2015/2016 is 35%. Case files graded as 'good' in February 2015 was 37%. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee 

PART 1 –

 

 

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee 

– MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 

 

 

Page 68



Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

 

Audit Programme 2015/2016 

 

6 The Audit Programme for 2015/16 has been finalised and includes monthly single 

agency audits (Children’s Social Care), Thematic Audits and Multi-Agency Audits 

(Appendix A). 

 

7 From April 2015 an electronic audit tool will be introduced for all monthly, thematic and 

multi-agency audits. 

 

8 The electronic audit tool is operated in Google Docs which allows for reporting on 

specific areas of practice, supervision and management oversight on a monthly basis. 

The electronic tool will allow data collection and analysis on thematic audit areas 

identified in the 2014/15 Ofsted Improvement Plan that were not completed. 

 

9 Monthly and thematic audit findings and trends will be collated by the Lead Quality 

Assurance Auditor. Quality Assurance Practice Mentors will support Team Managers to 

use audit findings to improve individual, team and service performance through action 

plans. 

 

10 Multi-Agency Audits will be completed in partnership with Hillingdon Safeguarding 

Children’s Board (HSCB). Findings will be reported back to the HSCB and action plans 

agreed across all agencies. HSCB Business Manager and QA Auditor will lead and 

coordinate multi-agency audits. 

 

Page 69



Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Appendix A - Quality Assurance Audit Programme 2015/2016 

2015 
Month 

Single Agency Audit Thematic 
Audits  

Multi-Agency 
Audit 

Quality 
Assurance 
monitoring 

April  Monthly single agency 
audits  

Decision making 
in the MASH 

- - 

May Monthly single agency 
audits 

- Multi-Agency 
Child Sexual 
Exploitation 
Audit (to 
include multi-
agency 
casework 
audit) 

- 

June Monthly single agency 
audits 

Implementation 
of Practice 
Standards - 
Visits to 
Children 

- - 

July Monthly single agency 
audits 
 

- Multi-Agency 
Domestic 
Abuse Audit 
(to include 
multi-agency 
casework 
audit) 

- 

August - - - - 

September Monthly single agency 
audits 

Supervision Multi-agency 
casework audit 
(CSE) 

Service Manager 
and TM six 
monthly 
performance 
review. (audits, 
consultations, 
complaints, IMRs 
etc)  

October Monthly single agency 
audits  

Implementation 
of Practice 
Standards - CP 
Plans 

- - 

November Monthly single agency 
audits 
 

- Multi-Agency 
Youth Violence 
Audit 

- 

December Monthly single agency 
audits 

Implementation 
of Practice 
Standards - 
Care Planning 

- - 

Page 70



Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

January Monthly single agency 
audits 
 

- Multi-agency 
casework audit 
(Domestic 
Abuse) 

- 

February Monthly single agency 
audits 

Implementation 
of Practice 
Standards - 
Referral and 
Assessment 

- - 

March Monthly single agency 
audits 

- Multi-Agency 
Casework 
audit (Youth 
Violence) 

Service Manager 
and TM six 
monthly 
performance 
review. (audits, 
consultations, 
complaints, IMRs 
etc) 

 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
 

REVIEW OF LEAVING CARE GRANT 
 

Contact officer: Jon Pitt  
Telephone: 01895 277655 

 
REASON FOR ITEM 

 
The Corporate Parenting Board and the Cabinet Member for Education and Children's 
Services have requested that the Committee gives consideration to the value of the grant 
that is payable to care leavers. 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

§ To note the officer update to be provided at the meeting. 
§ To ask questions and request further information about the Leaving Care Grant. 
§ To give consideration to whether a recommendation to increase the Leaving Care 

Grant should be made to Cabinet. 
 
INFORMATION 
 

1. The Education and Children's Services Policy Overview Committee (the 
predecessor of the Children, Young People and Learning POC) undertook a Review 
of the Leaving Care Grant Procedure and Grant in 2012 / 13. One of the 
recommendations made by the Review and subsequently approved by Cabinet on 
20 December 2012, was that the Care Leaver's Grant be increased from £1,000 to 
£1,500 (or £1,800 for those in exceptional circumstances). 
 

2. Department for Education guidance now recommends that local authorities pay a 
minimum Care Leaver Grant of £2,000. 
 

3. The level of Care Leaver Grant in Hillingdon was discussed at the Corporate 
Parenting Board Meeting in March 2015. The Board and the Cabinet Member for 
Education and Children's Services have requested that the level of the grant 
payable in Hillingdon is considered by the Committee. 

  
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

QUARTERLY SCHOOL PLACES PLANNING UPDATE 

 
Contact Officer: Dan Kennedy 

Telephone: 01895 250495 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
To update the Committee about the demand for school places in Hillingdon. 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To note the update about demand for school places. 
2. To question officers about the update and the future demand for school places. 

 
INFORMATION 
 
Introduction 
 
This paper presents to the Children, Young People and Learning Policy Overview 
Committee an update on school places planning for primary and secondary schools in 
Hillingdon. For ease of reference this update also re-states background information 
previously presented to the Committee. 
 
Background to School Places Forecasting 
 
The forecast for future school places predicts that the demand for additional school places 
will be sustained. In Hillingdon, the demand for additional school places is driven by rising 
birth rates, new residential developments, and families moving into the Borough who stay. 
This is because Hillingdon is a prosperous Borough of choice for many families. 
 
Primary School Places 
 
Overall, the 2014 school places forecast shows that the future need for primary school 
places over the next 5 years is largely met through the delivery of the successful schools 
expansion programme. This includes three new primary schools (two of which opened in 
September 2014 and one further school is on track to open by September 2015). Two new 
free schools (Hewens and Nanaksar) have also contributed to the supply of new primary 
school places in high demand areas of the Borough.  Officers are currently reviewing 
options to meet this need. 
 
Primary Planning Area 2 – Northwood – there is a forecast need for up to an additional 
one form of entry in the Northwood area of the Borough – which is a direct consequence of 
children living in south Hertfordshire applying to attend a primary school in the very north 
of the Borough (Frithwood and Hillside schools in particular). This pressure was 
experienced in the September 2014 admissions round where the net position was 24 
children from Hertfordshire securing and being offered a school place at Hillingdon primary 
schools in Northwood. This demand from families living just outside Hillingdon is expected 
to continue into future years. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 75



Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

Primary Planning Area 3 – Coteford Area – there is a forecast need for an additional one 
form of entry in primary places in this area, which seems to be mainly driven by rising birth 
rates and families moving into this area. 
 
Primary Planning Area 5 – Ruislip / South Ruislip Area  - there is a forecast need for an 
additional one form of entry in this area, which seems to be mainly driven by rising birth 
rates and also children from neighbouring Boroughs travelling to Hillingdon schools (this 
demand equates to a net two forms of entry from other Boroughs). Most Hillingdon schools 
in this area are full or close to being full.   
 
Action Being Taken 
Since the previous update to the Committee, and as reported to Cabinet, officers have 
visited selected primary schools in the north of the Borough to identify those with the 
potential for expansion for further discussion with Head Teachers and Chair of Governors.  
Three school sites are being explored further and the findings will be reported back to 
members for consideration. 
 
Future Demand for Secondary School Places 
 
The updated forecast for secondary school places in Hillingdon shows that the profiled 
demand for additional school places from September 2016/17 onwards is high and largely 
consistent with the previous 2013 forecast. 
 
Overall, the forecast indicates a need for up to an additional 27 forms of entry in secondary 
school places to September 2021 with a higher demand for school places in the central 
and north of the Borough secondary schools. 
 
From discussion with neighbouring London Boroughs, many are experiencing a very 
similar picture in demand for additional secondary school places and are at the same 
stage as Hillingdon preparing plans to meet the rising need. As a general point, forecasting 
for school places beyond 5 years does carry a higher risk of volatility in trends and so for 
the purposes of secondary school places planning, proposals will be developed initially 
which focus on the need for school places in the period to the academic school year 
September 2019 (i.e. over the next five years, representing 21 additional forms of entry 
forecast to be required in this period). 
 
Action Being Taken 
To meet the future need for additional secondary schools places, it is proposed that three 
existing secondary schools will be expanded (subject to Planning Approval).  The schools 
are: Northwood Secondary School, Swakeley’s School and Abbotsfield School. 
 
In addition, officers have been reviewing the suitability of expanding five further secondary 
schools in the Borough. Options have been prepared which are currently being considered 
by Members. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

September 2015 Update – Starting Primary School / Starting Secondary School 
 
All children who applied on time for a secondary school place have been offered a place. A 
higher than average percentage of secondary school age pupils in Hillingdon are offered 
their preference schools (in Hillingdon 93% offered one of their top three choices of 
schools compared to 87% across London). At the time of writing officers are in the process 
of finalising offers for primary school places on 16th April 2015.  All children who applied for 
a primary school place on time will be offered a place. 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

UPDATE ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

FROM PAST REVIEWS OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

Contact officer: Jon Pitt  
Telephone: 01895 277655 

 
REASON FOR ITEM 

 
The attached paper provides a brief summary of progress with regard to the 
recommendations made by previous reviews on the following topics: 
 

§ Elective Home Education. 
§ Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers Not in Education, Employment or Training. 
§ Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent. 

 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

§ To note the progress provided in the report. 
§ To consider the progress to date and developments. 
§ To Consider whether there are comments the Committee wishes to make. 

 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Elective Home Education 

Recommendations Updates 

RECOMMENDATION 1 – That an annual 
Borough network meeting take place 
between LBH EHE Parents and the local 
authority to enable networking to take place 
between different EHE groups. 
 
 

An initial network opportunity was provided and facilitated at the Civic Centre 
for EHE Hillingdon resident parents and children. This was held in January 
2013. This was well attended and appreciated. EHE residents took the 
initiative from that point to continue with the network meetings without the 
involvement of the Council. 

RECOMMENDATION 2 – That Officers 
review the EHE correspondence which is 
sent to EHE parents to ensure that their 
tone is empathetic and their contents are 
not open to misinterpretation. 
 
 

All correspondence was reviewed and agreed. Several complimentary 
comments were received from EHE residents subsequent to this. 

RECOMMENDATION 3 – That EHE parents 
be provided with information on London 
Borough Exam Centres that will accept EHE 
children. 
 
 

All EHE parents can access Exam Centre facilities through Hillingdon Tuition 
Centre. This is communicated to the Hillingdon EHE community. 

RECOMMENDATION 4 – That Cabinet be 
recommended to approve the updated 
policy on Elective Home Education and that 
the policy be 
reviewed on an annual basis. 

Cabinet agreed the revised policy following POC.  It is reviewed by officers 
annually, most recently to update terminology following implementation of the 
SEND reforms 

 

P
a
g
e
 8

1



P
a
g
e
 8

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers Not in Education, Employment or Training 

Recommendations Updates 

RECOMMENDATION 1 – That Council 
welcomes the Government’s commitment to 
collecting data on care leavers at ages 18, 
20 and 21, in addition to age 19 and 
commits to assessing this data as a means 
through which to monitor and improve the 
impact of the Council’s support of care 
leavers. 

 
 

The data that has been collected within the borough to date has been for care 
leavers NEET in the Borough and  collected when a young person who was in 

care on his/her 16
th 

birthday is contacted and asked about their status after 
turning 19.

 

Consequently, it is clear that this data does not provide up-to-date 
or complete figures for care leavers NEET across the full age range of 18-21. 

 
 

In recognition of this gap, the Government’s Care Leaver Strategy states that, 
as of 2014, the Department for Education, Ministry of Justice and Department 
for Work & Pensions would be collecting data on care leavers at 18, 19, 20 
and 21.  
 
Therefore- the officers will be committing to collecting data by: 
 

• Manual consultation and collection of information regarding 18 – 25 year 
olds (currently on-going for 2014/15 figures). 

• Consultation with ICS to ensure management information can be 
collected on NEET, education and employment status of our care leavers 
up to 25 years. 
 

This recommendation will also be addressed in the Service Improvement Plan. 

RECOMMENDATION 2 – That the Cabinet 
Member for Education & Children Services 
requests that officers explore the viability of 
the Hillingdon Virtual School identifying the 
LAC most ‘at risk’ of becoming NEET and 
passing this information on to the relevant 
social workers, personal advisors and 
officers in Children’s Services. 

• Virtual School maintains list of LAC most "at risk" of becoming NEET 

• Strategies to maintain in EET discussed during VS supervision 

• Monthly meeting between Social Care, Early Intervention, Virtual School 
and Corporate Parenting being put in place to a)  prevent LAC becoming 
NEET and b) to put in place strategies to support those who are NEET 
back into EET 

• Work on NEET prevention will be fed into the Education Sub-Group which 
reports to the CP Board 

P
a
g
e
 8

3



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers Not in Education, Employment or Training 

Recommendations Updates 

RECOMMENDATION 3 – To ensure that LAC 
and care leavers benefit from the full range 
of services and support provided by the 
Council, that the Cabinet Member for 
Education & Children’s Services requests 
that officers explore new ways of sharing 
information between frontline staff and 
other Council departments and report 
findings back to the Cabinet Member in due 
course. 

 
 

Messages are cascaded to staff and professionals by: 
 

• Wednesday and Monday Briefings’ across the service (Invites to other 
services). 

• Quarterly Health meetings. 

• A mentor to assist and support staff to implement practice and statutory 
updates. 

• Regular Briefings by the DCS Service wide. 

• Horizon (Council Website) 

• Trix has been updated 

• Practice Manuals  

RECOMMENDATION 4 – To ensure that LAC 
benefit from the full range of support 
offered by external organisations within the 
Borough, that the Cabinet Member for 
Education & Children’s Services requests 
that officers undertake research on the full 
range of externally provided services / 
opportunities that are aimed at, or could be 
used by, LAC and care leavers. 

 

This is outstanding.  

P
a
g
e
 8

4



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers Not in Education, Employment or Training 

Recommendations Updates 

RECOMMENDATION 5 – Subject to 
recommendation 4, that the Cabinet 
Member for Education & Children’s 
Services requests that officers explore 
improvements to methods of 
communication between frontline staff and 
the Borough’s charitable, educational and 
business organisations and report findings 
back to the Cabinet Member in due course. 

On-going regular communication between VS frontline staff and educational 
organisations takes place through: 

• Face to face meetings during PEPs at least once per term 

• Regular electronic communication in monitoring PEP Action Plans, 
including through newly introduced ePEP 

• The training of designated teachers and other school staff by the VS 

• VSH membership of the Hillingdon Association of Head Teachers 

RECOMMENDATION 6 – To expand upon 
the opportunities available to this 
vulnerable group of young people, that the 
Cabinet Member for Education & Children’s 
Services encourages Members and Council 
departments to consider where they might 
be able to provide work experience 
opportunities specifically to LAC and care 
leavers;  

Both the Participation and the Care Leavers Corporate Parenting Sub groups, 
in consultation with Children’s Rights and Participation Services and the 
Young People’s Team, are looking at different aspects of promoting work 
experience, apprenticeships and training and work opportunities for Care 
Leavers. 

RECOMMENDATION 7 – To ensure that care 
leavers who are undertaking part-time 
courses to develop skills are not obliged to 
withdraw, that the Cabinet Member for 
Education & Children’s Services requests 
that officers monitor the implications of the 
Welfare Reform on care leavers and, where 
necessary, put measures in place to ensure 
that these risks are mitigated;  

Regular meetings between the Uxbridge Job Centre and Social Care to look at 
bridging the gaps for Care leavers before October 2015. This recommendation 
is a working progress and it is envisioned that there will be a policy between 
the Job Centre and Social Care prior to October 2015. 

P
a
g
e
 8

5



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers Not in Education, Employment or Training 

Recommendations Updates 

RECOMMENDATION 8 – In order to provide 
opportunities for education providers in the 
Borough to share best practice, that the 
Cabinet Member for Education & Children’s 
Services considers whether officers should 
facilitate meetings between schools and 
Higher and Further Education providers; 
and 

 

• VSH aware that provision is provided through Brunel Widening 
Participation Officer, who is working with all primary and secondary 
schools and offering a programme of learning, motivational and 
aspiration-raising activities to schools across the borough from primary to 
sixth form.  In addition, ACCESS HE is available for schools wishing to 
work with HE other than Brunel 

• Specific activities set up by Brunel for Hillingdon LAC, including 2-day 
residential during summer term. 

RECOMMENDATION 9 – That the Cabinet 
Member for Education & Children's 
Services considers whether the issue of 
engaging with the Borough's schools to 
offer support to LAC from as early an age 
as possible, be referred to the Corporate 
Parenting Board for further consideration 
and progression. 

 

• VS engages with Borough's school as soon as a child becomes LAC and 
initial face to face PEP meeting held within 10 working days 

• Support and intervention plans integral part of every PEP from EYFS to 
age 18 

• Pupil Premium Plus specifically used for each individual LAC to support 
progress according to need 

• Designated Teachers attend LAC Reviews with LA officers 

• DTs and other school staff trained in matters relating to LAC 

 

P
a
g
e
 8

6



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent 

Recommendations Updates 

RECOMMENDATION 1 – Welcome the work 
currently being undertaken to review and 
revise the remit of the Corporate Parenting 
Board, its increased overview of the Council’s 
wide ranging role as a corporate parent and 
endorse its administration by Democratic 
Services.  
 
 

Not Applicable 

RECOMMENDATION 2 – Ask the Health & 
Wellbeing Board to request that the Hillingdon 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and 
Hillingdon Child and Adolescent Mental Health 
Services (CAMHS) acquire, maintain and 
share data on the following areas: 

a. Proportion of total budgets spent 
on LAC; 

b. Proportion of LAC registered with 
a GP; 

c. Proportion of the CAMHS 
caseload that is made up of LAC; 

d. Information on what intervention / 
therapy is being provided by 
CAMHS and what health issues 
are being dealt with via wider 
case consultation; and 

e. The number of Tier 2, 3 and 4 
assessments that CAMHS 
undertake for LAC. 

This recommendation is partly complete. 
The data is to be updated from the our designated LAC Nurse and Dr. 
 
However, enquires have been made with CAMHs: 
 
Of the current cases open in CAMHS - (694) 56 are LAC i.e. 8%. This 
includes cases open to the LAC Clinical Psychologists as well as to core 
CAMHS. None of these cases are Tier 2. The thresholds are very high due 
to limited resources in core CAMHS, that is they are all complex Tier 3 
CAMHS cases. 
 
The remainder of the information will be documented in the Service 
Improvement Plan. 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

7



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent 

Recommendations Updates 

RECOMMENDATION 3 – Instruct officers to 
continue to work alongside colleagues from 
Hillingdon CAMHS to provide a designated 
point of contact to provide advice and 
assistance for all mental health issues relating 
to LAC, reporting to the Health & Wellbeing 
Board if required. 
 
 

There is a CAMHs lead who provides clinical supervision to all in house 
psychologists. There are regular meetings with the CAMHs lead and LAC 
Service Manager. 
 
The Mobilisation Projects - to develop a 'single point of access'. This needs 
further clarification from CAMHs. 
 
However, the four in house psychologists are providing instant services to 
the most vulnerable LAC children. 

RECOMMENDATION 4 – Instruct officers to 
work alongside the Council’s partner agencies 
to develop a comprehensive understanding of 
where responsibilities lie between NHS 
England and CCGs for all aspects of the 
health needs of LAC and report findings back 
to the Cabinet Member for Education & 
Children’s Services, the Children, Young 
People & Learning Policy Overview Committee 
and the Health & Wellbeing Board as 
appropriate. 
 

There are regular quarterly meetings between the  Designated LAC Dr and 
Nurse. This enables any issues to be resolved and a plan of action to 
ensure smooth running between services.  
 
Further work needs to be undertaken with the CCG to develop and 
strengthen partnership working. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 5 -  In order to ensure 
that the mental health needs of LAC are met 
when placements are out of Borough, instruct 
officers to produce a protocol on the process 
of how services are brokered between CCGs 
and NHS England for agreement by the 
Cabinet Member for Education & Children’s 
Services and the Health & Wellbeing Board. 

There have been a few cases whereby the CCG has jointly funded 
provisions for the LAC child. However, further work needs to be undertaken 
to ensure a protocol is delivered between the CCG and Social Care to 
ensure a consistent and smooth running service. This recommendation will 
be addressed in the service improvement plan. 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

8



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent 

Recommendations Updates 

Recommendation 6: Instruct officers to 
monitor data on the number of relevant young 
people up to the age of 25 approaching the 
Council for support in education, training and 
employment and report findings back to the 
Cabinet Member for Education & Children’s 
Services in due course. 
 

Given that such educational support has only recently been extended to 
those up to the age of 25, officers do not have the data for this number. 
However, processes have been set in place to monitor the NEETS. 
 
Recent legislative changes now mean that local authorities have a duty to 
provide Personal Advisers to care leavers up to the age of 25 who inform 
the Council that they have returned, or wish to return, to education or 
training. The Children (Leaving Care) (England) Regulations 2001 state that 
the role of Personal Advisers is to:  
 

• provide advice (including practical advice) and support;  

• where applicable, to participate in the care leaver's assessment and the 
preparation of their pathway plan;  

• participate in reviews of the pathway plan;  

• liaise with the responsible authority regarding the implementation of the 
pathway plan;  

• co-ordinate the provision of services, and to take reasonable steps to 
ensure that they make use of such services;  

• keep informed about their progress and wellbeing; and  

• keep a written record of contact with the care leaver.  
 
This recommendation will be monitored through the Service Development 
plan.  
 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

9



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent 

Recommendations Updates 

Recommendation 7: In accordance with the 
budget planning process and to ensure 
compliance with changes set out in the Care 
Leavers (England) Regulations 2010, ask 
officers, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Education & Children’s Services, 
to explore the viability of providing additional 
general and pastoral support through the 
Hillingdon Virtual School to relevant young 
people up to the age of 25 going on to 
education or training and report findings back 
to the Cabinet. 
 

• Plan is being devised to resource the Virtual School so that they have 
the capacity to make this provision for relevant YP up to the age of 25 

• Findings will be reported back via the CPB 
 
 

Recommendation 8: Instruct officers to 
investigate the viability of building Education 
Residential and Respite Accommodation 
alongside the future development of schools 
in the Borough and report findings back to 
Cabinet in due course. 
 

• This recommendation has not yet been completed as it needs further 
clarification 

Recommendation 9: Instruct officers to 
monitor and report back to the Cabinet 
Member for Education & Children’s Services 
on the success of the peer-mentoring scheme 
currently being trialed as a means through 
which to provide additional support to care 
leavers with a view to expanding the scheme if 
it leads to improved outcomes. 

A Peer mentoring Scheme was piloted by the Children’s Rights and 
Participation Service at the end of 2013.   A total of seven care leavers, 
aged 20 +, completed a three day training programme to prepare them to 
mentor/support a younger person in care who was about to leave care or 
was in the process of transition.  
 
From the initial 7 mentors who completed the training, 4 stable matches 
were made from in early 2014. The feedback from three of these matches 

P
a
g
e
 9

0



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent 

Recommendations Updates 

 was successful, and mentors kept regular contact with their mentees either 
in person or by phone. One match however lost regular contact with their 
mentee.  
 
Unfortunately the previous workers in the Children’s Rights and 
Participation Team left the service in May 2014.  A new team were recruited 
from September 2014 and are currently working to re-establish the peer 
mentoring Scheme. Three of the previous four mentors are in contact with 
the new Children’s Rights worker and are keen to continue their role as a 
peer mentor and also to assist in the recruiting and training of new mentors.  

Recommendation 10: Ask officers to collect 
comprehensive data on LAC’s use of the 
Borough’s health, sport and leisure facilities, 
including their use of and engagement with 
taster events. 
 

It has not been possible to implement this recommendation. Information on 
the use of leisure centres could only be collected if LACYP included their 
status on their LeisureLink scheme application. Unfortunately, as this 
information was not included on applications it was not possible to monitor 
LAC usage of facilities.  
 
Nonetheless, the Committee requested that as comprehensive data as 
possible be collected to provide an evidence base for how this group could 
be engaged better in sporting and leisure activities. 

Recommendation 11: Subject to the outcome 
of Recommendation 10 above, ask officers to 
undertake feasibility work on whether further 
discounted rates or incentives could be put in 
place to increase access to sporting and 
leisure facilities for LAC and report findings 
back to the Cabinet for consideration. 
 

This is an area that requires further exploration. Future use of sporting, 
youth service and leisure facilities are being explored for LAC events. 
 
Kids in Care Awards (KICA) were already in place and offered an 
opportunity for some LACYP to celebrate their success. However, this 
event was not seen to meet these needs as the event is designed for and 
attended by only those who have won awards and therefore does not 
extend to the Borough’s full LACYP population. – KICA is currently being 
reviewed to address this issue and make 2015 more inclusive of all LAC 
children. 

P
a
g
e
 9

1



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent 

Recommendations Updates 

Recommendation 12:Subject to the budget 
planning process, ask officers to investigate 
the viability of providing regular consultation 
and social events for LAC to offer them further 
opportunities to socialise and share 
experiences. 
 

There is an extensive range of participation events organised for LAC e.g. 
fun outings at Christmas, ice skating and meal out; Express Yourself  
Participation Day for 7-11 years in the Easter Holidays, residential in the 
summer; Care leavers Conference in May; Review of Viewpoint.  
 
3 separate Children in Care Groups held each month:  

• Talkers for 7-11 years 

• Step up 12-15 years 

• Stepping Out 16 plus 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

2



 

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee - 15 April 2015 
 

Part 1 – Members, Public and Press 
 
 

POTENTIAL REVIEW TOPICS OR IDEAS FOR FIRST MAJOR REVIEW OF 

2015/16 

 
Contact Officer: Jon Pitt 

Telephone: 01895 277655 
 
 
REASON FOR ITEM   
  
To enable the Committee to consider which topics it wishes to review for its first major 
review during 2015/16. This will enable a full scoping report to be considered at the next 
meeting on 24 June 2015.  
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE   
  
The Committee is asked to select a single area within its remit, bearing in mind the topics 
suggested below, to be developed into a scoping report. This will require Members to 
agree as specific a topic for investigation as possible so that officers can produce a 
targeted and effective plan for the review.  
 
 
INFORMATION  
 
1. In order to ensure that there is sufficient capacity for the Committee to undertake two 

major reviews in 2015/16, it is proposed that the first topic for review is selected at the 
April 2015 meeting. A full scoping report, setting out the terms of reference of the first 
review, would then be presented to the Committee on 24 June 2015. Subject to 
approval of the Committee, the first witness session would be held place at the July 
2015 meeting.   

 
2. As per its Terms of Reference, the Committee is responsible for undertaking the 

‘policy overview’ role in relation to the following areas: 
 

§ Education Services and statutory education authority functions 
§ School performance and attainment 
§ School Transport 
§ Relationships with Local Academies / Free Schools 
§ Pre-School & Early Years Services 
§ Youth Services & Careers Services 
§ Juvenile justice & probation services 
§ Adult Learning 
§ Education and learning partnerships 
§ Music & The Arts 
§ Social care services for children, young persons and children with special needs 
§ Adoption and Fostering 
§ Family Services 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 93



 

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee - 15 April 2015 
 

Part 1 – Members, Public and Press 
 
 

3. In selecting topics for further investigation, Members are reminded of previous reviews 
that have been undertaken by this Committee and by the Education & Children's 
Services Committee which preceded it. Details are set out below: 

 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICES POC 

2006/07 

§ Transition from Primary to Secondary School 
§ Widening the Scope of the Education Service 

2007/08 

§ Extended Schools and Children’s Centres 
§ Meeting the Needs of Troubled Teenagers 

2008/09 

§ Development of Inclusion in Hillingdon Schools 
§ 14 to 19 Strategy 
§ Develop a Short Breaks Provision 

2009/10 

§ Reviewing whether current arrangements and future plans to support inclusive 
practice in Hillingdon schools are effective 

§ Reviewing current arrangements and future plans for safeguarding children at 
Heathrow Airport as a port of entry 

2010/11 

§ 14/19 Education & Training 

2011/12 

§ Elective Home Education Policy 
§ Adoption & Permanency for Looked After Children 

2012/13 

§ Safeguarding of Children that go Missing  
§ Access to Education for Hillingdon’s Vulnerable Children and Young People 

 
 

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE & LEARNING POC 

2013/14 

§ Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent 
§ Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers Not in Education, Employment or Training 

2014/15 

§ Reducing the Risk of Young People Engaging in Criminal Activity and Anti-Social 
Behaviour 

§ Hillingdon's Implementation of the Special Educational Needs Disability (SEND) 
Reforms 

 
4. It is at the Committee's discretion as to the areas it wishes to review. Bearing this in 

mind, the Committee Chairman and officers have proposed that the Committee gives 
consideration to the following potential review topics: 
 

• Inspiring schools to be more proactive in working with LAC to improve 
outcomes - it is suggested that this could be expanded to all children with one 
session on LAC. 

Page 94



 

Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee - 15 April 2015 
 

Part 1 – Members, Public and Press 
 
 

• Careers guidance and support services / Review the career guidance given to 
young people whilst at school/ college. 

• Are early help systems in Hillingdon effective at preventing neglect? 

• Review the fostering and adoption process to include selection, together with 
pre and post support. 

• Review health education given to our school children to include obesity, STD 
and substance abuse - it is suggested that a single area of focus is identified 
e.g. substance abuse.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 -
 T

e
l:

 0
1

8
9

5
 2

5
0

4
7

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il
: 

d
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

@
h

il
li
n

g
d

o
n

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

  
  

  
  

  
P

a
g
e

 1
T

h
is

 e
d

it
io

n
 s

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
s

 A
L

L
 p

re
v
io

u
s

 e
d

it
io

n
s

R
e
f

D
e
c
is

io
n

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
W

a
rd

(s
)

Final decision 

by Full 

Council

Cabinet 

Member(s) 

Responsible

Officer 

Contact for 

further 

information

Consultation 

on the 

decision

NEW ITEM

Private 

decision?

3
9

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 C
h

il
d

 

S
e
x
u

a
l 

E
x
p

lo
it

a
ti

o
n

 

(C
S

E
) 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

C
a
b
in

e
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 H

ill
in

g
d
o
n
's

 C
S

E
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

A
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

, 
C

a
b
in

e
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

s
e
x
u
a
l 

e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 (

o
r 

a
re

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
) 

s
e
x
u
a
lly

 e
x
p
lo

it
e
d
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

.

A
ll

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s

C
Y

P
S

 /
 A

D
 -

 

T
o
n
y
 Z

a
m

a
n
 

/ 
N

ik
k
i 

C
ru

ic
k
s
h
a
n
k
 

/ 
N

ik
k
i 

O
'H

a
llo

ra
n

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

a
n
d
 w

it
n
e
s
s
 

te
s
ti
m

o
n
y

N
E

W

S
I

S
c
h

o
o

l 
C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 U

p
d

a
te

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 u
p
d
a
te

 C
a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

k
e
e
p
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

c
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
.

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o
 a

n
d
 

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s

R
S

 -
 J

e
a
n
 

P
a
lm

e
r 

O
B

E
 

/ 
B

o
b
b
y
 

F
in

c
h

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

P
u
b
lic

 /
 

P
ri
v
a
te

 

(3
)

S
I

M
o

n
th

ly
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

- 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

re
p

o
rt

T
h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
s
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 

in
 

d
e
ta

il 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
.

A
ll

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o

F
D

 -
 P

a
u
l 

W
h
a
y
m

a
n
d
 

S
I

R
e
p

o
rt

s
 f

ro
m

 P
o

li
c
y
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s

M
a
jo

r 
P

o
lic

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
B

C
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

A
D

 -
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
I

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
 

C
o

n
v
e
rs

io
n

s

A
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

to
 s

e
e
k
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

g
ra

n
ti
n
g
 l
o
n
g
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
 w

is
h
 t

o
 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

 t
o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 S

ta
tu

s
. 

 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s
 /

 

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o

R
S

 -
 

M
ic

h
a
e
l 

P
a
tt

e
rs

o
n

P
ri
v
a
te

 

(3
)

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
: 

 R
S

 =
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 C

Y
P

S
 =

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
A

S
C

S
=

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 A

D
 =

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

  
  
F

D
=

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
e
ti

n
g
 -

 2
3
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
5

Agenda Item 12

Page 97



D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 -
 T

e
l:

 0
1

8
9

5
 2

5
0

4
7

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il
: 

d
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

@
h

il
li
n

g
d

o
n

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

  
  

  
  

  
P

a
g
e

 2
T

h
is

 e
d

it
io

n
 s

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
s

 A
L

L
 p

re
v
io

u
s

 e
d

it
io

n
s

R
e
f

D
e
c
is

io
n

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
W

a
rd

(s
)

Final decision 

by Full 

Council

Cabinet 

Member(s) 

Responsible

Officer 

Contact for 

further 

information

Consultation 

on the 

decision

NEW ITEM

Private 

decision?

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
: 

 R
S

 =
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 C

Y
P

S
 =

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
A

S
C

S
=

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 A

D
 =

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

  
  
F

D
=

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 

S
I

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 I
te

m
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 

e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 m
a
k
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 e

a
c
h
 

m
o
n
th

 o
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
te

m
s
 -

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

it
e
m

s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

A
ll

A
D

 -
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

S
I

S
c
h

o
o

l 
C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 U

p
d

a
te

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 u
p
d
a
te

 C
a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

k
e
e
p
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

c
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
.

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o
 a

n
d
 

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s

R
S

 -
 J

e
a
n
 

P
a
lm

e
r 

O
B

E
 

/ 
B

o
b
b
y
 

F
in

c
h

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

P
u
b
lic

 /
 

P
ri
v
a
te

 

(3
)

S
I

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
 

C
o

n
v
e
rs

io
n

s

A
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

to
 s

e
e
k
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

g
ra

n
ti
n
g
 l
o
n
g
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
 w

is
h
 t

o
 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

 t
o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 S

ta
tu

s
. 

 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s
 /

 

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o

R
S

 -
 

M
ic

h
a
e
l 

P
a
tt

e
rs

o
n

P
ri
v
a
te

 

(3
)

S
I

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 I
te

m
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 

e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 m
a
k
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 e

a
c
h
 

m
o
n
th

 o
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
te

m
s
 -

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

it
e
m

s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

A
ll

A
D

 -
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

D
e
c
is

io
n
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
5

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
e
ti

n
g
 -

 2
1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
5

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

D
e
c
is

io
n
s 

- 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
5

Page 98



D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 -
 T

e
l:

 0
1

8
9

5
 2

5
0

4
7

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il
: 

d
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

@
h

il
li
n

g
d

o
n

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

  
  

  
  

  
P

a
g
e

 3
T

h
is

 e
d

it
io

n
 s

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
s

 A
L

L
 p

re
v
io

u
s

 e
d

it
io

n
s

R
e
f

D
e
c
is

io
n

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
W

a
rd

(s
)

Final decision 

by Full 

Council

Cabinet 

Member(s) 

Responsible

Officer 

Contact for 

further 

information

Consultation 

on the 

decision

NEW ITEM

Private 

decision?

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
: 

 R
S

 =
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 C

Y
P

S
 =

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
A

S
C

S
=

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 A

D
 =

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

  
  
F

D
=

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 

3
6

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

O
u

tt
u

rn

T
h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

w
ill

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 

A
ll

C
llr

 R
a
y
 

P
u
d
d
if
o
o
t 

M
B

E
 &

 C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o

F
D

 -
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

P
a
u
l 

W
h
a
y
m

a
n
d
 

N
E

W

S
I

S
c
h

o
o

l 
C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 U

p
d

a
te

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 u
p
d
a
te

 C
a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

k
e
e
p
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

c
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
.

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o
 a

n
d
 

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s

R
S

 -
 J

e
a
n
 

P
a
lm

e
r 

O
B

E
 

/ 
B

o
b
b
y
 

F
in

c
h

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

N
E

W
P

u
b
lic

 /
 

P
ri
v
a
te

 

(3
)

S
I

A
c
a
d

e
m

y
 

C
o

n
v
e
rs

io
n

s

A
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

to
 s

e
e
k
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

g
ra

n
ti
n
g
 l
o
n
g
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
 w

is
h
 t

o
 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

 t
o
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 S

ta
tu

s
. 

 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s
 /

 

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o

R
S

 -
 

M
ic

h
a
e
l 

P
a
tt

e
rs

o
n

N
E

W
P

ri
v
a
te

 

(3
)

S
I

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 I
te

m
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 

e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 m
a
k
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 e

a
c
h
 

m
o
n
th

 o
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
te

m
s
 -

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

it
e
m

s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

A
ll

A
D

 -
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

N
E

W

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
e
ti

n
g
 -

 1
8
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
5

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

D
e
c
is

io
n
s 

- 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
5

Page 99



D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 -
 T

e
l:

 0
1

8
9

5
 2

5
0

4
7

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il
: 

d
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

@
h

il
li
n

g
d

o
n

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

  
  

  
  

  
P

a
g
e

 4
T

h
is

 e
d

it
io

n
 s

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
s

 A
L

L
 p

re
v
io

u
s

 e
d

it
io

n
s

R
e
f

D
e
c
is

io
n

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
W

a
rd

(s
)

Final decision 

by Full 

Council

Cabinet 

Member(s) 

Responsible

Officer 

Contact for 

further 

information

Consultation 

on the 

decision

NEW ITEM

Private 

decision?

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
: 

 R
S

 =
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 C

Y
P

S
 =

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
A

S
C

S
=

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 A

D
 =

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

  
  
F

D
=

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 

S
I

M
o

n
th

ly
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

- 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

re
p

o
rt

T
h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
s
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 

in
 

d
e
ta

il 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
.

A
ll

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o

F
D

 -
 P

a
u
l 

W
h
a
y
m

a
n
d
 

N
E

W

S
I

S
c
h

o
o

l 
C

a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 U

p
d

a
te

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 u
p
d
a
te

 C
a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

k
e
e
p
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
la

c
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
.

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
llr

 

J
o
n
a
th

a
n
 

B
ia

n
c
o
 a

n
d
 

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s

R
S

 -
 J

e
a
n
 

P
a
lm

e
r 

O
B

E
 

/ 
B

o
b
b
y
 

F
in

c
h

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s

N
E

W
P

u
b
lic

 /
 

P
ri
v
a
te

 

(3
)

S
I

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 I
te

m
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 

e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
a
b

in
e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 m
a
k
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 e

a
c
h
 

m
o
n
th

 o
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
te

m
s
 -

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

it
e
m

s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
. 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

A
ll

A
D

 -
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
e
ti

n
g
 -

 2
3
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

D
e
c
is

io
n
s 

- 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
5

Page 100



D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 -
 T

e
l:

 0
1

8
9

5
 2

5
0

4
7

0
 o

r 
e

m
a

il
: 

d
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

@
h

il
li
n

g
d

o
n

.g
o

v
.u

k
  

  
  

  
  

  
P

a
g
e

 5
T

h
is

 e
d

it
io

n
 s

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
s

 A
L

L
 p

re
v
io

u
s

 e
d

it
io

n
s

R
e
f

D
e
c
is

io
n

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
W

a
rd

(s
)

Final decision 

by Full 

Council

Cabinet 

Member(s) 

Responsible

Officer 

Contact for 

further 

information

Consultation 

on the 

decision

NEW ITEM

Private 

decision?

C
o

u
n

c
il
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
: 

 R
S

 =
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 C

Y
P

S
 =

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
A

S
C

S
=

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
  
 A

D
 =

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

  
  
F

D
=

 F
in

a
n

c
e
 

S
I

In
te

ri
m

 C
a
b

in
e
t-

le
v
e
l 

d
e
c
is

io
n

s

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
in

g
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 

n
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
, 

th
e
 L

e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y
 b

e
 g

ra
n
te

d
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 

w
id

e
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

k
e
y
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-k

e
y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l,
 p

o
lic

y
, 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 o
th

e
rw

is
e
 b

e
 

re
s
e
rv

e
d
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
lly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t.

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o

f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
, 

if
 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

A
n
y
 s

u
c
h
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 u

s
u
a
l 
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 a

 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

ra
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
 f

u
lle

r 

n
o
ti
c
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 f

o
r 

a
n
y
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

g
iv

e
n
, 

w
h
e
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
b
ly

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

V
a
ri
o
u
s

C
llr

 R
a
y
 

P
u
d
d
if
o
o
t 

M
B

E

A
D

 -
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

V
a
ri
o
u
s

N
E

W
P

u
b
lic

 

a
n
d

p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 

(1
,2

,3
)

S
I

S
c
h

o
o

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

in
g

 

B
o

d
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

G
o

v
e
rn

o
rs

T
o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

, 
n
o
m

in
a
te

 a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 

a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 r

e
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 g
o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 

a
n
d
 t

o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 a

n
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
y
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
. 

T
o
 a

ls
o
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
 a

n
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

o
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 b

e
 a

 G
o
v
e
rn

o
r 

o
r 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

a
n
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y

C
llr

 D
a
v
id

 

S
im

m
o
n
d
s

A
D

 -
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

>
 A

u
g
u
st

 2
0
1
5

N
o

 C
a
b

in
e
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0
1
5

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 M
E
M

B
E
R

 D
E
C

IS
IO

N
S
 -

 L
IS

T
 O

F
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 I
T

E
M

S
 C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

E
D

 E
A

C
H

 M
O

N
T

H

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
 

Work Programme 2014/2015 
 

Contact Officer: Jon Pitt 
Telephone: 01895 277655 

 
 
REASON FOR REPORT 
 
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This is 
a standard item at the end of each agenda.  
 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To confirm dates for meetings; and  
2. To make suggestions for future working practices and reviews.  
 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15 
 

25 Jun 2014 
 
VENUE: CR6 

Consideration of topics for the first major review of the year 

School Admissions Update 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions 

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year 

 

29 Jul 2014  
 
VENUE: CR6 

1st Major Review – Consideration of Scoping Report 

Presentation on the SEND Reforms 

Budget Planning Report for Education & Children’s Services 2015/16 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions 

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year 

 

10 Sep 2014 
 
VENUE: CR6 

1st Major Review – Consideration of revised Scoping Report 

Report on the Ofsted report on Merrifield House Resource Centre 

Report on the thematic audit into the number of children on Children 
Protection Plans and the number of Child Protection Enquiries 

Quarterly school place planning report 

Annual Complaints Report 2013/14 for Children and Young People’s 
Services 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions 

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year  

Agenda Item 13

Page 103



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
 

 
 
 
 

08 Oct 2014 
 
VENUE: CR6 

1st Major Review – 1st witness session 

Report on progress against the Ofsted Report Action Plans 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions  

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year 

 

26 Nov 2014 
 
VENUE: CR6 

1st Major Review – 2nd witness session 

Consideration of topics for single meeting review 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions  

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year 

 

14 Jan 2015 
 
VENUE: CR6 

1st Major Review – 3rd witness session 

Consideration of scoping report for single meeting 

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board Annual Report 

Brief update on progress against the Ofsted Report Action Plans 

Budget Proposals Report 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions 

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year 

 

18 Feb 2015 
 
VENUE: CR6 

Consideration of draft final report from first major review 

Report on the Additional Needs Strategy 

Quality Assurance and Audit Framework – Children’s Services - 
verbal update 

Single meeting review - witness session 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions 

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



 
Children, Young People & Learning Policy Overview Committee – 15 April 2015 

 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
 

 
 
 

18 Mar 2015 
 
VENUE: CR6 

Progress Report on Action Plan in Response to Ofsted Inspection of 
Services to Children in Need of Help and Protection, Children Looked 
After and Care Leavers (“Ofsted Action Plan”) 

Standards and Quality in Education in Hillingdon 2013/2014 

Single Meeting Review - Hillingdon's Implementation of the Special 
Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Reforms - Draft Report 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions  

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year 

 
 

15 Apr 2015 
 
VENUE: CR3 
and CR3a 

Quarterly Child Social Care Audit Update 2014/2015 

Children's Social Care Improvement Plan 

Review of Care Leaver's Grant 

Quarterly school place planning 

Update on the Implementation of Recommendations from past 
reviews of the Committee:  

i) Elective Home Education 
ii) Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent 
iii) Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers Not in Education, 

Employment or Training 

Cabinet Forward Plan - Review forthcoming decisions 

Work Programme – Review the work programme for the coming year 

  
*all meetings begin at 7pm unless otherwise stated 

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 18 March 2015
	6 Update on the Children and Young People's Services Improvement Plan
	Children's Social Care Services Improvement Plan 2015 - 16
	Children's Social Care Service Improvement Action Plan 2015 - 16

	7 Quarterly Child Social Care Audit Update 2014 - 2015
	8 Review of Leaving Care Grant
	9 Quarterly School Place Planning Update
	10 Update on the Implementation of Recommendations from past reviews of the Committee
	Elective Home Education
	Improving Outcomes for Care Leavers not in Employment, Education or Training
	Strengthening the Council's Role as a Corporate Parent

	11 Potential Review Topics or Ideas for First Major Review of 2015/16
	12 Forward Plan
	13 Work Programme 2014/15

